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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designhed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for a
minimum period of seven days from the date of its publication
and on the Company’s website at http.//www.hklifesciences.com.
All respects with the then existing shares.
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2704, 27/F.

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

British West Indies
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OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.hklifesciences.com
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3 B R et e B 3

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell
technology businesses; (ii) trading business; (iii) money lending
business; and (iv) securities investment. As a result of the disposal
of the entire equity interests in Z2RZEB X EHB/EBR A A
(Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company Limited*) (“Tianxi
Hotel”) on 19 June 2015, the Group discontinued its hotel
operations. The financial results of Tianxi Hotel were therefore
classified as the discontinued operation and the comparative
information has also been restated accordingly.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing operations

Anti-Aging and Stem Cell Technology Businesses

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue from the anti-
aging and stem cell technology businesses of approximately
HK$7,923,000 (2015: HK$16,245,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 51% as compared to last year. The segment l0ss
before tax was approximately HK$15,630,000 (2015:
HK$21,669,000).

159 anti-aging center

The Group has successfully completed the acquisition of 51% of
equity interests of 159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively, “159 Group”) in 2012, 159 Group
was granted a licence for the user right of stem cell technology.
During the year, the revenue from 159 Group was approximately
HK$5,304,000 (2015: HK$13,648,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 61% as compared to last year. The Group
continued to face the keen competition and high operating costs
and the revenue was significantly affected by weak demand for
the stem cell technology service of 159 Group. The Group has
imposed tight costs control to the operations, with a view to
minimising costs to cope with the changing business
environment.

The anti-aging application with the stem cell technology is a fairly
new service, the future of this business will depend on the
success in achieving the market acceptance and customers’
confidence for our products and services. The Group will continue
to keep track of the business environment and review the future
allocation of resources as and when required.
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Other anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses

During the year, the revenue from the distribution of life sciences
and biomedical products in Hong Kong was approximately
HK$50,000 (2015: HK$181,000). In 2013, The Group acquired the
entire equity interests of Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Biotechnology
Company Limited* and setting up certain subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), which are principally
engaged in the provision of health check and beauty service.
During the year, the revenue from health check and beauty
service was approximately HK$2,569,000 (2015: HK$2,416,000).

Reference was made to the Company’s announcement dated 28
March 2013, the Company further acquired certain exclusive
licences on the patents. On 18 March 2016, the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary , Gold Arch Group Limited (“Gold Arch”),
entered into the technology development agreement (the
“Technology Development Agreement”) with £ # 4 ¥ &l 5
(# M) BB A A (Hope Bio-tech (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*) ("Hope Bio-
tech”) for research and development of two patents, as further
disclosed in the section headed “Connected transaction-
Technology Development Agreement”. In order to produce
commercially viable products, more research effort and
investment have to be made to develop and improve the patents.
Through entering into the Technology Development Agreement,
the Group may be able to improve the patents and is likely to
benefit from improving its product mix. If commercially feasible,
the Group may also expand its anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses into the PRC.

TRADING BUSINESS

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue from the trading
business of approximately HK$95,148,000 (2015: HK$289,521,000),
representing a decrease of 67% as compared to last year. The
segment loss before tax was approximately HK$3,060,000 (2015:
HK$11,742,000). The decline in turnover was due to the Group
reduced its sales of metals which generate lower profit margin.
The Group will continue to attempt to broaden the customer base
and diversify our trading products to increase its revenue stream
and improve the financial performance.

* for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The Group commenced its money lending business through Asia
Honest Finance Limited, which holds a money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong
Kong). As at 31 March 2016, the loan receivables and interests
receivables were approximately HK$181,271,000 (2015:
HK$96,628,000) and approximately HK$13,761,000 (2015:
HK$861,000) respectively. During the year, the Group recorded a
revenue from money lending business of approximately
HK$19,971,000 (2015: HK$14,313,000). Segment gain before tax
was approximately HK$18,779,000 (HK$13,195,000). The average
interest rate charged by the Group was approximately 13% (2015:
16%) per annum. Customers included individual and corporations
providing secured and unsecured loans, the credit terms of
outstanding loans granted by the Group to customers ranged
from 6 months to 12 months. In view of significant demand in the
market, the Group intends to maintain the loan portfolio with a
prudent manner in order to generate a healthy cash flow and
steady returns.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had held-for-trading
investments in the Hong Kong listed companies of approximately
HK$12,640,000 (2015: HK$38,245,000). During the year, the
realized gain on disposal of Hong Kong listed securities was
approximately HK$4,046,000 (2015: loss of HK$12,158,000) and the
unrealized gain of Hong Kong listed securities investments was
approximately HK$519,000 (2015: unrealized loss of
HK$24,228,000) representing the fair value change on held-for-
trading investments. Dividend income from the securities
investment was HK$330,000 (2015: nil). The Board will continue to
monitor the market conditions and its performance.

6 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Disposal of hotel operations

The Group established a special purpose subsidiary for operating
the hotel business in 2014. Reference was made to the
Company’s announcement dated 4 April 2014, the Group entered
into (i) the lease agreement to lease the property located in Jiangxi
Province, the PRC; and (ii) the management agreement to obtain
certain management services in respect of the hotel operations.
The trial operation of Tianxi Hotel was commenced in October
2014. However, the construction of certain facilities had not been
completed and as a result the operation of the Tianxi Hotel had
not yet been formally commenced. On 15 June 2015, the Group
entered into the equity transfer agreement with the purchaser to
dispose of the Tianxi Hotel for a consideration of RMB5 million.
Having considered the business trends of the hotel operations,
including but not limited to the hotel room rates, customer
demand and the net loss making position attributable to hotel
operations for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board considers
that (i) the hotel business was no longer a commercially attractive
option to the Group in view of the uncertain operating
environment; (ii) the disposal would enable the Company to
dispense with the need for further capital injection into Tianxi
Hotel; (iii) the Disposal would avoid further costs that would be
incurred under the lease agreement and the management
agreement; and (iv) the disposal would enable the Group to focus
its resources on its other business and reallocate its resource to
other investment. Details of the disposal of hotel operation were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15 June 2015.

The completion of the disposal took place on 19 June 2015 and
the financial results of Tianxi Hotel were therefore classified as
the discontinued operation. During the year, the revenue from the
hotel operations was approximately HK$1,429,000 (2015:
HK$4,076,000) and recorded the loss of approximately
HK$5,669,000 (2015: HK$9,677,000) from the discontinued
operation.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$123,372,000 (2015: HK$320,079,000) from
continuing operations, representing a decrease of 61.5% as
compared to last year. The significant decrease in revenue was
mainly derived from the trading business.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Company has carried out an impairment test on its other
intangible assets. Taken into account the delay in research and
development plan on the patents, more research effort and
investment have to be made in order to produce commercially
viable products. The impairment loss of HK$16,000,000 on other
intangible assets was recognized during the year as the carrying
amount of the other intangible assets exceeds the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount was determined with reference
to the valuation report produced by an independent valuer.

The administrative and other operating expenses for the year was
approximately HK$44,872,000 (2015: HK$65,374,000) from
continuing operations, which included a non-cash expenses of
HK$4,723,000 (2015: HK$4,487,000) relating to the share-based
payments to certain consultants of the Company.

The loss from the continuing operations for the year was
approximately HK$41,767,000 (2015: HK$78,884,000). The
decrease in loss from the continuing operations was mainly
attributable to the realized and unrealized gain of Hong Kong
listed securities of approximately HK$4,565,000 (2015: loss of
HK$36,386,000). The loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$42,167,000 (2015:
HK$81,134,000) and the loss per share was 1.02 HK cents (2015:
2.05 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$258,264,000 (2015: HK$137,913,000) and the
cash and bank balances was approximately HK$40,301,000 (2015:
HK$12,099,000). The Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings (2015: Nil). The gearing ratio of the Group, being the
ratio of total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 11.9%
(2015: 16.5%).
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PLACING OF 790,000,000 NEW SHARES UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

References were made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 December 2015 and 5 January 2016, the Company and
the placing agent entered into a placing agreement pursuant to
which the Company agreed to place of 790,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.04 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.13 (the “Placing Price”) per
Placing Share (the “Placing”) to not fewer than six placees. The
aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares was
HK$31,600,000. The Placing Price represented a discount of
approximately 13.33% to the closing price of HK$0.15 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of placing agreement.
The net proceeds raised per Placing Share were approximately
HK$0.1266 per Placing Share. The gross proceeds and net
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$102.7 million
and HK$100 million respectively. The net proceeds from Placing
have been utilized for the development of existing business and
for the general working capital of the Group. Details of the Placing
were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 15
December 2015 and 5 January 2016.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to HK$360,840,000 (2015:
HK$301,293,000). The equity of the Company mainly comprises
share capital and capital reserves.

MATERIAL EVENTS

Discloseable transaction — Disposal of listed securities
On 12 May 2015, the Company disposed 23,410,000 shares of
China Assurance Finance Group Limited, the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM (stock code: 8090) through a securities
broker for the gross sale proceeds of HK$25,751,000 (excluding
transaction costs). Details of the disposal of listed securities were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2015.

NALYSIS
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Discloseable transaction — Extension of loan agreement
and provision of financial assistance

On 29 September 2015, Asia Honest Finance Limited as lender
(“Asia Honest"), Mr. Lam Wai Keung (“Mr. Lam”) and Honorbase
International Limited (“Honorbase”) as borrower and mortgagor
respectively entered into the extension loan agreement (the
“Extension Loan Agreement”). As the term of loan agreement
dated 27 March 2015 (the “Loan Agreement”) has expired, Asia
Honest, Mr. Lam and Honorbase have entered into the Extension
Loan Agreement to extend the term of the Loan Agreement for
the 6 months to 20 March 2016. Pursuant to the Extension Loan
Agreement, the principal of the loan of HK$27,389,676 is secured
by the legal charge in respect of land located in Hong Kong.
Details of the Extension Loan Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 September 2015.

Discloseable transaction — Further extension of loan
agreement

On 22 March 2016, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam and Honorbase entered
into the further extension loan agreement (the “Further
Extension Loan Agreement”). As the term of Extension Loan
Agreement has expired, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam and Honorbase
have entered into the Further Extension Loan Agreement to
further extend the maturity date of the Loan Agreement to 20
September 2016. Pursuant to the Further Extension Loan
Agreement, the principal of the loan of HK$27,389,676 is secured
by the legal charge in respect of land located in Hong Kong.
Details of the Further Extension Loan Agreement were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2016.

Connected transaction — Technology Development
Agreement

On 18 March 2016, Gold Arch entered into the Technology
Development Agreement with Hope Bio-tech in relation to the
research and development of the patents. As at the date of the
Technology Development Agreement, Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr.
Lin”) was an executive Director, a vice-chairman and a
shareholder holding 17.76% of the issued share capital of the
Company, and his spouse (being Mr. Lin's associate under the
GEM Listing Rules) were indirectly interested in the entire equity
interests in Hope Bio-tech. Accordingly, Hope Bio-tech was an
associate of Mr. Lin under the GEM Listing Rules and hence was a
connected person of the Company.
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Under the Technology Development Agreement, Hope Bio-tech
will be responsible for (i) devising the plan for the research and
development of the patents; (ii) executing the research and
development plan, which shall include, in respect of the first
patent, conducting animal experiments, toxicologic study(ies) and
upon obtaining relevant government approval, clinical trials, and
to obtain relevant experimental data; and in respect of the second
patent, conducting experiments to test the effectiveness and
safety of products, development and trial production of products,
and subject to the compliance of all PRC laws and regulations,
obtaining of approval for production of medical equipment; (iii)
rendering assistance in the procurement of the medical
equipment to be purchased under the Technology Development
Agreement ; and (iv) to adhere strictly to the budget as set forth in
the plan and in the event that the funding needed for executing
the above plan exceeds the amount payable by Gold Arch, Hope
Bio-tech will utilise its own means to resolve the matter and Gold
Arch will not be obligated to provide any additional funding. The
total consideration under the Technology Development
Agreement for the first year of service would be HK$9,500,000. As
at the date of this report, a total of HK$7,000,000 had been paid
under the Technology Development Agreement. Details of the
Technology Development Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2016.

LITIGATION AND ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT
Reference was made to the announcement of the Company dated
27 May 2013 in relation to the Group, the vendor and the
guarantors entered into the sale and purchase agreement for the
sale and purchase (the “Acquisition Agreement”) of the
property located at Longgang District, Shenzhen (the “Property”).
Under the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor agreed to handover
the Property to the purchaser for use before 31 January 2014. The
Group has paid the deposit to the vendor in accordance with the
Acquisition Agreement but the vendor failed to handover the
Property.

The Group has lodged a civil litigation against the vendor and the
guarantors on 7 April 2016 (the “Litigation”) and applied for an
order from the People’s Court of Longgang District, Shenzhen
Municipality of the PRC (the “People’s Court of Longgang”) for,
among other things, termination of the Acquisition Agreement
and the supplemental agreement to the Acquisition Agreement,
return of the refundable deposit in the sum of RMB23,520,000 and
payment of damages in the sum of RMB8,490,720 (being the
damages for the period from 1 February 2014 to 15 March 2016).
The Group has instructed its PRC lawyers to handle the Litigation
and deal with all legal matters in relation thereto.

NALYSIS
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On 22 June 2016, the Group entered into a creditor’s rights
assignment agreement ("Assighment Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Tennessee Technology Co., Ltd* (FRINTTHMTARIE B
fR/A\], as the assignee) (the “Assignee”) for the transfer of the
creditor’s rights, the rights against the Guarantors and all the
other rights and interests vested in the Purchaser under the
Acquisition Agreement and the supplementary agreement to the
Assignee (“Sale Rights”) for a consideration of RMB11 million.
The assignment of the Sale Rights is a good opportunity for the
Purchaser to reduce potential loss caused by the Litigation and
transfer the relevant costs and risk out of the Purchaser, the
Group. The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are of the view that the assignment under the
Assignment Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the
terms of the Assignment Agreement are fair and reasonable and
on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole. As the result of the Litigation and
Assignment Agreement, the impairment loss of approximately
HK$15,026,000 was recognized during the year.

Details of the Litigation and Assignment Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 4 May 2016
and 22 June 2016 respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi and considers that the impact of foreign
exchange exposure of the Group is minimal. During the year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2015: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed a total of 38 (2015: 146)
full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the year
under review, the total remuneration to employees, including
Directors’” emoluments and retirement benefits amounted to
approximately HK$14,686,000 (2015; HK$28,873,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
qualification, experience and the prevailing industry practice.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).
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PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to enhance the anti-aging and stem cell
technology businesses. In this regard, the Board will constantly
keep reviewing the Group’s strategies and operations with a view
to improve its business performance. In view of the growth
potential in the PRC market, we intend to further develop our
business in the PRC. We will continue to search and identify other
products and service to broaden our revenue stream as well as
explore other investment opportunities to expand and diversify
our business portfolios.

On 26 April 2016, the Company entered into the non-legally
binding letter of intent with Driving Force Limited (the “Driving
Force"), in respect of a possible acquisition (the “Possible
Acquisition”). Subject to the formal sale and purchase
agreement which may be entered into in relation to the Possible
Acquisition, Driving Force shall sell and the Company shall acquire
the sale share, representing 100% of the issued share capital of
Clear Ambition Global Limited (the “Target Company”). The
Target Company is a company incorporated in Samoa and
principally engaged in the business of investment holding. It holds
90% of the issued share capital of Cellvax SAS, a company
incorporated in France on 19 June 2001. Cellvax SAS is a service
company which provides complete preclinical innovating services
allowing accelerating the drug development process for unmet
needs related to severe human diseases, mainly in oncology and
osteoarthritis fields. The consideration for the Possible Acquisition
is subject to further negotiations and determination between
Driving Force and the Company. As at the date of this report, the
discussions were still in progress and no legally-binding
agreement had been entered into in respect of the Possible
Acquisition. Details of the Possible Acquisition were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 26 April 2016.

APPRECIATIONS

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, customers, business partners
who have been offering their support, confidence and
encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion,
diligence and effort of the management and the members of staff
who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for improvements
of the Group. With all these supports remain, we shall continue to
explore means to improve the Group's performance and provide
investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr. Lin"), aged 66, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 23
September 2013. Mr. Lin is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30 years’ experience in
healthcare management. Mr. Lin is currently the shareholder and
director of Healthcare Solution Investments Limited, Wei Xin
Hospital Investments Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd*, and Hope
Bio-tech (Suzhou) Co., Ltd*.

Mr. Lu Zhiqiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance officer, the
authorized representative and the directors of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Central State University of the United States of
America and a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and a Bachelor
Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong University. Mr. Lu
used to learning a Master of Science Degree from the International
Purchasing & Supply Chain Management Audencia NANTES.Ecole
de Management. He is the leadership development chairperson of
Lions Club in Shenzhen. Mr. Lu has many years’ experience in
management and investment. He was the managing director of
Chin Mining Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Lu is an executive director of
Global Energy Resources International Group Limited (stock code:
8192). He was a non-executive director of China New Energy
Power Group Limited (stock code: 1041) from 29 October 2014 to
9 July 2015.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 49, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive Director on 30 November 2009. Mr.
Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process in
Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 19 years' experience in accounting and
auditing fields including over 14 years' experience in other listed
companies. Mr. Chui is an executive director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228). He is also a non-
executive director of each of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 404), Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246)
and DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559). He was
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March 2010 to 16 March
2016.
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Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 48, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. He has resigned as a vice chairman of the Board
but remains as an executive Director on 22 August 2014. Mr. Jiang
holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural Design and
Theory from South China University of Technology. He also holds
a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in Landscape
Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering Degree
majoring in Urban Planning from Chongqing Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d' Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
People’s Republic of China. In addition, Mr. Jiang was also the
member of City Ecological Planning and Construction Academic
Ccommittee of the Urban Planning Society of China and also was a
consultant of Urban Planning Construction and Protection of
Ancient City of Lijiang, Yunnan Province. He has extensive
experience in planning design, architectural design, landscape
architecture design, planning management and project planning.
He is an independent non-executive director of China Minsheng
Drawin Technology Group Limited (formerly known as South East
Group Limited, stock code: 726).

Ms. Li Mei (“Ms. Li"), aged 36, was appointed as the executive
Director on 14 December 2015. Ms. Li holds a degree of Master of
Business Administration in Financial Management from York
University, United States of America. Ms. Li has extensive
experience in financial services business. She is a licensed person
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") to carry
on type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity. Ms. Li is an
independent non-executive of Sky Forever Supply Chain
Management Group Limited (stock code: 8047). She was an
executive Director of the Company from 21 September 2012 to 1
August 2013.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam”), aged 68, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 December
2012. Ms. Lam currently is the sub-director and the shareholder of
GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR TRANSPORT COMPANY
LIMITED. Ms. Lam has over 30 years' business experience in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau region.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung"), aged 64, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013. Mr.
Hung is also the chairman of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a graduate diploma
in Accounting from University of Strathclyde, Glasgow. Mr. Hung
has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance and is
a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company. He is a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Hung
is an independent non-executive director of each of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214). He was an independent non-executive
director of Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58)
from 28 February 2013 to 20 May 2015.

Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan"), aged 68, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business Administration
from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen (RITS),
China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is currently the director
and consultant of Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui Li Group Limited*. He is
also the Standing Committee Member of Guangdong Huizhow of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice
Chairman and the Secretary-General of Hong Kong Federation of
Huichow Associations Limited and the Deputy Secretary-General
of Hong Kong Federation of Guangdong Hakka Associations.

Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“"Mr. Gui”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 21
September 2012. Mr. Gui is also the member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of
Business Administration from California Southern University
(formerly known as Southern California University for Professional
Studies) and as a post-doctoral research fellow at California State
University Monterey Bay. Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of the
board of GN International Group and the chairman of World City
Cooperation Organization Committee of China. He possesses the
professional qualifications such as China Certified Real Estate
Appraiser, Certified Public Valuer and Registered Land Valuer. Mr.
Gui has over 20 years corporate experience and over 5 years
working experience in the government of the People’s Republic of
China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERHE

OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that good
quality corporate governance would assist the management to
monitor the Company’s business activities effectively and
thus interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) will be well protected.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had
applied the principles and complied with the principle in the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the "CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, save for the exceptions which are set out in
the relevant section below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, save as one
Director had reported to the Company and the Stock Exchange
that he had accidentally purchased a total of 1,044,000 Shares on
13 November 2015 during the black-out period, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with such code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings throughout the year ended 31
March 2016.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in all
major matters of the Group, include approving and monitoring of
all policy matters, setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, material transaction, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The day-
to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Group. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the coordination and direction of day-to-day operation and
management of the Group in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the senior management of the Group and the
Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
Directors and their respective roles in the Board are set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Ms. Li Mei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the GEM website and the Company’s website.

The profiles of each Director are set out in the “Profile of
Directors” section on pages 14 to 16 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company currently has three independent non-executive
Directors (the “INEDs") which representing one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDS can assist the management to
formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company
maintains appropriate system to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14
December 2015, Ms. Li Mei had been appointed as an executive
Director and the Board consisted of ten Directors, among which
only three of them were independent non-executive Directors.
The number of independent non-executive Directors fell below
one-third of the Board members as required under Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules. Following the resignation of Ms. Ding
Xiaomei as an executive Director on 10 March 2016, the Company
had fulfilled the requirement under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules for having independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the INEDs in respect of their independence to the Company in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ”).

THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended the
meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). Notice of all regular Board meetings
are duly given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail for
any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes of
the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Ccompany (the “Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. INEDS who have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

During the Board meetings, the Directors determined overall
strategic direction and objectives and approved quarterly, interim
and annual results, and other significant matters.
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There were 19 Board meetings held for the year ended 31 March
2016. Individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings are set out
in the table on page 24 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Pursuant to the Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance
of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Lu
Zhigiang respectively.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The CEO is responsible for the overall management and business
operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.

The newly appointed Director is provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’'s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Company had arranged at the cost of the
Company a professional seminar conducted by a professional
firm on topics relating to the new amendments to the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. All Directors including newly appointed
Directors would receive such training reading materials.

All Directors had confirmed they have complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 of CG Code on directors’ training. During the year,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminar/programme/reading relevant
materials in relation to the business on directors’ duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and Code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat
Ming, Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat
Ming is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and any questions of its resignation and dismissal, review the
Group’s annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, review the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems, discuss the
internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to provide advices and comments
thereon to the Board.
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During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results of the Company. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems and reported its
findings and made recommendations to the Board. The Group's
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 had been also reviewed by the Audit Committee and
provided advice and comments thereon.

There were 4 meetings of the Audit Committee for the year ended
31 March 2016. Individual attendance of each member of the
Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 24 of this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. As at
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming, Mr. Chan Yun Hing and
Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of the INEDS and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors as well as review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance guidelines of the Company and to
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Board diversity policy

On 12 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
The Company recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional experience.
All Directors’ appointments are based on merits and considered
against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and
determined the policy for the nomination of Directors.

There were 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee held for the
year ended 31 March 2016. Individual attendance of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 24
of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “"Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
one executive Director, namely Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, and three
INEDS, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming , Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui
Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
policy for the remuneration of executive Directors and assessed
performance of executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee adopted a model in the Code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of
the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee determines, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.

There were 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee held for
the year ended 31 March 2016. Individual attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table
on page 24 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT EEHESRICS

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings TERHIIGEEFHEZE T F=A=+—HILF
and its respective committees meetings, and general meeting EHFE=eexkHEKAarEEeee2 UARKRE
during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in the following K& 7 Réf 15 ¢

table:
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HREENY HEERERZRY
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
= EZg8E ENZESEE REZE8EE FMZESEE RRBEFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun mEsLE 19/19 N/A N/A N/A 11
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EFBLE 19/19 N/A N/A N/A 11
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau B a 19/19 N/A N/A 11 il
Mr. Jiang Hongaing EHELE 12/19 N/A N/A N/A 01
Ms. Li Mei (Note 1) gL (1) 6/7 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Note 2) T/Me& LT (H722) 9/17 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Non-executive Director kHITES
Ms. Lam Kuo mxt 14/19 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Independent Non-executive By F#iTE=

Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming EHBLE 18/19 4/4 il 7 171
Mr. Chan Yun Hing BB E £ 1719 4/4 17N 1N 01
Mr. Gui Qiangfang R RAE 16/19 3/4 M7 171 01
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERAE 717 11 N/A N/A 01
(Note 3) (Hizt3)

Notes: BaE -
1. appointed on 14 December 2015 1. RZF-—AF+-ATHOEEZAE
2. resigned on 10 March 2016 2. RZZT—X"F=A+HEHT
3. retired on 7 August 2015 3. RZZE-—RAFENALHEE
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Pursuant to Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
should attend the annual general meeting. However, Ms. Lam Kuo
was unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 7
August 2015 due to her other prior engagement. Ms. Lam invited
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, an executive Director to chair and answer
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
external auditors of the Company attended the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors” independence.

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings. However,
certain non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company due to their other prior
engagements. Details of attendance of the general meeting are
set out in the above table.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF THE
ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules. The responsibility of the
auditors is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the Group's system of internal control.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems and
reported its findings and made recommendations to the Board.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness
and adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control. The Board also satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of Pan-China
(H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”) as the independent auditors of
the Company and proposed to re-appoint Pan-China as the
independent auditors at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM").

As at 31 March 2016, the fee payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Company are as follows:

BT &

ERZEgCRARE(FR) StMEBRERA
A REBDERARRBILZEEN 2 RHA - WiEH
RARREERRAFAE(RRBFAE]) LA
B R A2 /B LA BRAD -

RZB-—REF=ZA=+—H  RERAZEAEREH
ZERNFERRBRRE N ZMenT

Type of services Amounts

RisESE ot |
HK$
BT

Audit service BRE

Audit fee for the financial statements of the Group REEHE T F=A=+—H

for the year ended 31 March 2016 IFFEZHBRAZEZER 800,000
Non-audit service BRI Nil Z
COMPANY SECRETARY LFIWE

Mr. Lam Tze Chung (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary with effect from 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is responsible
for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the CEO on
governance matters. He has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training for the year ended 31 March 2016.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convent such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website
after each general meeting.
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SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards of
disclosure and financial transparency through the publication of
annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend general
meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board
directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant committees
will be also available to answer the questions in the general
meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company.

o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Directors herein present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses; (i) trading business; (iii) money lending business; and
(iv) securities investment. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 37 to 39 of this annual report.

The financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 40 to
41 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
page 156 of this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and
distributable reserves of the Company during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set
out in Notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Ms. Li Mei (@appointed on 14 December 2015)
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (resigned on 10 March 2016)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (retired on 7 August 2015)

In accordance with the Article 86(3) of the Articles, Ms. Li Mei shall
hold office until the AGM. She is subject to re-election and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. David Lin
Kao Kun, Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Hung Yat Ming, being one-third of
the Directors will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the INEDs in respect of their independence in accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all INEDs are still being
considered to be independent.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Profile details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 16 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the interests of Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, an executive
Director, a vice-chairman and a shareholder of the Company, in
the Technology Development Agreement, as mentioned in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in this report, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company and any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of the Company
(“Shares”)
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Mr. David Lin Kao Kun Beneficial owner 845,610,333 17.84%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executives had any other interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of share in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
Details of the share options scheme are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors were not aware of any other
persons or corporations (other than the Directors and the Chief
Executives) who had interest in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 March 2016, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 99.9% of the Group's total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 74.7% of the Group's total purchases. Aggregate
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
approximately 85.7% of the Group's sales while the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 77.1% of the
Group's sales.
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None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the issued capital of the Company) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's major suppliers and customers for the year ended 31
March 2016.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party and connected transactions are set
out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of this
report and as below:
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2016 2015
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FET FE&T
Fees for research and development ZREER (BF)
on patents (Note) 3,000 -

Note: On 18 March 2016, the Group entered into the Technology Development
Agreement with Hope Bio-tech. As at the date of the Technology
Development Agreement, Mr. David Lin Kao Kun was an executive Director, a
vice-chairman and a shareholder holding 17.76% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and his spouse (being Mr. Lin's associate under the GEM
Listing Rules) were indirectly interested in the entire equity interests in Hope
Bio-tech. Accordingly, Hope Bio-tech was an associate of Mr. Lin under the
GEM Listing Rules and hence was a connected person of the Company.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors, controlling
Shareholders nor any of their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicity available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 17 to
27 in this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Details of review of the Group’s business is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
in this annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

ANALYSIS OF KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Details of the key financial performance indicators to the
performance of the Group’s business are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify
and manage environmental impacts attributable to its operational
activities in order to minimise these impacts if possible. In view of
the above and as at the date of this annual report, the Group
complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers and suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts
with the customers and has regular review of requirements of
customers and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of
the performance of suppliers on regular basis.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the new enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of
the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors and other officers, for the
time being acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group to protect the Directors and officers of the Group against
any potential liability arising from the Group's activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIODS

Details of the events after the reporting periods are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 have been audited by the auditors of the Company,
Pan-China, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the AGM. A resolution for the reappointment
of Pan-China as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 37 to 155, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of the Group's financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016

Tsang Chiu Keung
Practising Certificate Number P04968
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
v 8 o B HLfth 2= W dm R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—~NF=A=+—HILFE

DATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AN

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing Operations BHEREER
Revenue g 7(a) 123,372 320,079
Cost of sales SHE R (93,528) (293,143)
Gross profit E 29,844 26,936
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HEBEEERE 2 e/ (Bi8)
held-for-trading investments 4,046 (12,158)
Fair value change on HIFEEREZ AT ES
held-for-trading investments 519 (24,228)
Other revenue and net income HAb WS R AF 28 7(b) 378 4,466
Administrative and other TR R EM SR
operating expenses (44,872) (65,374)
Gain on derecognition of contingent BUBTERIE S ARE 2 =
consideration payable 28 - 31,167
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BB A R EH s 2 U as 8 - 4,016
Impairment of deposit paid HUBEWE  MEMEREINZ
for acquisition of property, Al RE
plant and equipment 36(a) (15,026) -
Impairment of other intangible assets HEthELEE ZRE 17 (16,000) -
Impairment of goodwill [SESEAE 18 = (42,000)
Loss before tax BEATEE 9 (41,111) (77,175)
Income tax FriS i 10 (656) (1,709)
Loss for the year from REFBELEER 2 FERIE
continuing operations (41,767) (78,884)
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Loss from discontinued operations REERIEER 2 BE 1 (5,669) 9,677)
Loss for the year AEFEEE (47,436) (88,561)
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
E {8 g B H fth 2= i W 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ_—=

—NF=A=T—HIFE

2016 2015
—RE —ET—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b FERT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Other comprehensive income/ Hih2mEkE(FX) :
(expense):
Items that may be reclassified H&r[gE FEmEA
subsequently to profit or 10Ss:
Exchange difference arising on BEBINEREEZIEN ZHE
translation of foreign operations (3.010) (44)
Release of translation reserve & — M B A R R ER R
upon disposal of a subsidiary bE H 40 -
Release of translation reserve upon I~ RIEUE R M
deregistration of subsidiaries FR IR B G - 1,579
Oother comprehensive (expense)/ AEEHMEE(FX), W
income for the year (2,970) 1,535
Total comprehensive expense AEEXHEBXARE
for the year (50,406) (87,026)
Loss for the year attribute to KARBEEALRFEELEE
Owners of the Company
— from continuing operations — RABELEER (36,498) (71,457)
— from discontinued operations — RADKILEER (5,669) (9,677)
(42,167) (81,134)
Loss for the year attribute to FERERTFEEREEEE
Non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —RERBREEY (5,269) (7,427)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEER - -
(5,269) (7,427)
(47,436) (88,561)
Total comprehensive expense AEERGEZEmEXEE:
for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — AQEER A (45,137) (79,599)
— Non-controlling interests — FEPRpR RS (5,269) (7,427)
(50,406) (87,026)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

E_g_/\$5ﬁ5+—5ﬁ

Loss per share:

From continuing and discontinued
operations
— Basic (HK Cents)
— Diluted (HK Cents)

From continuing operations
— Basic (HK Cents)
— Diluted (HK Cents)

2016 2015
—nE ZE—AF
Note (Restated)
3 (Z51)
SRS 13
T E B R R R
— AR (L) (2.05)
— #5E GBAL) (2.05)
o R A T
— AR (L) (1.81)
— 3% GBAL) 81)
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CONSOLIDATEED STATEMENT OF FI
F=1 R ITES

As at31March 2016 R=-—ZFE— N FE=HA=+—8H

NANCIAL POSITI

i

(0)

2016 2015
s —T-hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FHET
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KK 16 11,822 32,201
Other intangible assets Hinfm&E 17 46,000 62,000
Goodwill [EES 18 - -
Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE 19 2,509 2,509
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEYIZE - W=
plant and equipment SEL WA ke 30(i) o 29,694
Total Non-Current Assets kRBEEHTE 60,331 126,404
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories & 20 7 90
Trade and other receivables & UK B 3R R E A E U R IR 21 247,187 139,827
Held-for-trading investments FHIEEERE 22 12,640 38,245
Tax in advance FERFRIB 1,176 -
Cash and bank balances e MBITHES 23 40,301 12,099
Total Current Assets REEEHALE 301,311 190,261
Current Liabilities V=R
Trade and other payables R AT B R B L A P A5 3R0E 24 43,047 50,615
Tax payable FEATREIE = 1,733
Total Current Liabilities FEBERAE 43,047 52,348
Net Current Assets REEETFE 258,264 137,913
Net Assets EERHE 318,595 264,317
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Asat31March2016 K=F—~E=A=+—8

2016 2015
—EB—KF —T—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=S FER FET
Capital and Reserves RAR &1
Share capital RN 26 158,013
Reserves s 143,280
Equity attributable to the owners of RARBER NEERER
the Company 301,293
Non-controlling interests JEFERRARERS (36,976)
Total Equity R 264,317

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 155 were EEE@R T — /N FE N A B #fE R B T3
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24  #37 £ 155 B s & MR K - W H THESEK

June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: REEGEE:
LU Zhigiang CHUI Kwong Kau
EA BRI
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEF
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Share Non-
Share Share  Special  options Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
Bx  BRHEE  KEIRE ERERE  RERE  RER BE FiRES ag
(Note 37 (Note 37 (Note 37 (Note 37
(b)@) (b)) (b)) (b)iv)
(W37 (W&37 (W& (WEy
(WI0) (b)) (b)) (b)iv))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T Fin T T
At 31 March 2014 and R-B-REZF=+-RAR
1 April 2014 —E-MERE-A 158,013 524,799 (39,.998) 971 (736) (266,644) 376,405 (29,549) 346,85
Loss for the year TEEEA - - - - - (81,134) (81,134) (7.427) (88,561)
Release of translation reserve upon B ABUEFMERBER
deregistration of subsidiaries B - - - - 1579 - 1579 - 1579
Exchange difference arising on BERNEBELZERER
translation of foreign operations - - - - (44) - (44) - (4)
Total comprehensive expense FEFRERTMLE
for the year - - - - 1535 (81,134) (79,599) (7.427) (87,026)
Share option lapsed RRERN - - - (3.883) - 3883 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled TAER T ABERURN &
share-Dased payments AR 7N - - - 4,487 - - 4,487 - 4,487
At 31 March 2015 WZE-RE=F=+-0 158,013 524,799 (39,998) 1,575 79 (343,895) 301,293 (36,976) 264317
At 31 March 2015 and R=2-1%£=f=1-Bk
1 April 2015 -§-5EMA-A
Loss for the year TEEFE
Fxchange difference arising on BERNEREL B ER
trandlation of foreign operations
Release of translation reserve upon - (HE-RIMBAREEREK
disposal of a subsidiary e
Total comprehensive expense TER2ERTEE
for the year
Issue of ordinary shares nder RERNRERTERR
share placing
Share option lapsed RRERM
Recognition of equity-settled ANERHABERNRA A
share-based payments A2 7
At 31 March 2016 W=2-~"E=f=1-R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BallERER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—~NF=A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—RF
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELEERZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI AT &R
Continuing operations SR (41,111) (77,175)
Discontinued operations BRI (5,669) (9,677)
(46,780) (86,852)
Adjustments for: B TS IBEL AR
Interest income F B U A (372) (3,728)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEZ RS
plant and equipment = (68)
Impairment of deposit paid for TLUEEE - BB R EE
acquisition of property, I ZE2RE
plant and equipment 36(a) 15,026 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 18 - 42,000
Depreciation of property, YE - BENMERETE
plant and equipment 8,862 9,272
Impairment of other intangible assets HivfBEEEZRE 17 16,000 -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal on HEREEEREZ
held-for-trading investments (W), EiE (4,046) 12,158
Gain on deregistration of contingent BUBTER BT S ARE 2 =
consideration payable - (31,167)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BB A RIEUH FE 2 s = (4,016)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EB AR ZEE 4,095 -
Fair value change on held-for-trading BHEEEREZAFEEE
investments (519) 24,228
Equity-settled share-based payments LAt 7 A E R AR &
B S AT 4,723 4,487
Impairment loss of trade receivables R ERR 2 B EE 51 -
Operating loss before changes in LEESEYR KL EBE
working capital (2,960) (33,686)
Decrease in inventories FEemEd 40 11,073
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and e Ui BE 28 % EL4th E W 260
other receivables (1), w (96,197) 13,811
Decrease/(Increase) in held-for-trading  #EE Z&E WD, (3€ M)
investments 30,170 (5,043)
Decrease in trade and FEATBRFR R E A FE T 5RIE
other payables DR (4,579) (7,503)
Net cash used in operations EEMER S FE (73,526) (21,348)
Income tax paid BAFTSH (3,565) -
Net cash used in operating activities (R IR P FEIN T EE (77,091) (21,348)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSW

WBOBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ=F—NF=A=+—HILFZF

2016 2015
—RF —T-RF
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
L FERT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from investing activities XEBREEHZHERE
Interest received B U F 8 372 3,685
Purchase of property, plant and BEME - WE &&E
equipment (77) (17,938)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BEMREZE
plant and equipment RNIE - 68
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—ERBARZEE
subsidiary MAFEE 29 6,280 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREZBME /(i) BEF8
investing activities 6,575 (14,185)
Cash flows from financing activities REREEHZRERE
Net proceeds from issue of BT L RARFTS IR EEE
ordinary shares 26 99,961 -
Net cash generated from financing BEEEERE T
activities 99,961 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeERESZEEY
and cash equivalents #in,/ GRd) BEE 29,445 (35,533)
cash and cash equivalents at the ENBESRBESZEY
beginning of the year 12,099 47,718
Effects of foreign exchange G T SR B ) 2 R
rate changes (1,243) (86)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERZEERESEEY
the end of the year 40,301 12,099
Analysis of cash and RERBEEENTT
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHH 40,301 12,099

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM
V8 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is situated
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The
principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Unit
2704, 27/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses; (i) trading business; and (iii)
money lending business; and (iv) securities investment. The
Group had discontinued its hotel operation businesses
during the year (see note 11).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

Amendments to HKAS 19
BERGFTERFE 195 2 1E85]
Amendments to HKFRSS
BRI WELER 2 (85T
Amendments to HKFRSS
BRI ELER 285

LEEH

EAEGRERMERAR AR ([AAF IR
BHRESHESARE IS RHASHSEMK
SV RERRARAR  ARMNEBBER S
FiBEMRAR(TE AT Bl EMR(TAIZER D £
e A A & 5 i #F 35 B £z 7 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, British West
Indies e RRRIEBEAZ X B L EMBURNE
78 T 838 168-200 5% (= 72 H 0 Fa 38 27 48 2704

=
= °

FAPMBRRAARBNEEEETIIER -

RNAFBFREERAT - ARFIREREB AT
(GBIAEE D 2T BEE B NEERBA
RIS ¢ (VB SETS © (I)MEER  Kv)
BHEE - AEBRFASRIEEEHEES
EER(RKIEE) -

ERAMITRESTERMEREERN
(FEEMBHRELEMN])

RAFER AEEGRAEAUTHEESS
fhag ([EEEFMAR])RGZEEN R
HEERZERT -

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
FEBFEE  EEHK

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
BANBMELEN T -SFE_T-——_FHRBACFEUE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
BANBMELEN T ——FE2 T =FHEBACFEUE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=F— NF=A=+—HILFE

46

i,
- _—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions that
are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does not
have defined benefit plans.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for
the current year are as follows:

. HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a
reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only
required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no significant impact on the
Group.

. HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply the revaluation model for the measurement
of these assets.

2%

BRI RIEER] & & M58 EER
(TEEMBGERELER]) W)

BRETZHEERZEWT

BFRETERE 195 28R [ REBAG
g EEMHK]

EREHERE 19N 2B EANEERE=
7 RSERAE BIE R Z R - ZEFERT/EE
SR B AR & B AR 2 (R (B an R 3% B E #r
TANHFEZEEHRK) 2 EE - it
RERARTE FHAERE - BIE RN R A BRTS
Z B N RERZE R R BEIRBIREEA - fr
AEEW BT R ERATE > RFEFTEHA
SEYEZE -

ERVBBEEA-_Z-FTFE_FT—Z
TRz FERE
R-E—ME— AR EEMBREER =
T-REE_T-_FRPCZFEREHES
AEBMHEME LR ZER] - RAFELERZ
AEERT ZFIRT

s AAEUBMEEAFR[LENE]:
ERERRERBEEMBRSELES
FAZEARERMAREEEEEL
ZHE > BREAGEAKEDBZERIA
AR R DB 2 SR -
SZEERINERNREERBEEZYH
REEZEHERSTEIELERRAZ
BRTHEARE - ZFEITHAEEL
BEMBERTE -

o  EEGHEME6HKIYWE  BE IR
wIREESTEAFERRIBILEE]
EENE BELRBARBVEEZ
BEfAR ZREAER R ER S
ZRIE - ARAEEYERZFTEER
REBMHEL  ZEETHAEELEE

& -

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T E AR A 7



-,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

be 5 W 05 SR R W aE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

(continued)

° HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for
the current year are as follows:

° HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements of
the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Company is not a joint arrangement
and the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.

o HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also
to other contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKFRS 39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual period
in which HKFRS 13 was initially applied. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS
13.

(W A
/.

ERFITRESTEEMEREERN

(ERMBEEELEN]) @)
ERVBREEA-_B-—FTFE_F—Z
FRYZ FEBGE (&)

o  EHEGHENFURIMEFIKE]E
BEEER(MeHEREEABREZ
B RBE T RERET R B
Foltih EREEEE ERERRE
EERBELZEM - mNAEH L E
AR HMER 2 EMEERY - %ERT
UAKEYBEIFZE -

ERUBBREEA-_B——FE_FT—=
FRBFELGE
R-E—ME— AR EEMBREER =
T—FE_T--FRPZFEREHES
BEBUHERME LR ZER] - RAFEERZ
AFERT 2R BN

o BAEUBMELAEIR[EBHEH]:
EEAERF(EIFAZELE) TENE
AWM EEREIRBEN - MEER
RERBERARAE LA ST BERE
RZEFRE - ZEFTRERILER -
HRARRRAIEAR E LR AEBERF
NI TR E L ZEFTHAR
SEEWEAEITE -

o BBMBWMSEIE BRI AFEE]
EEEEMBMEEANE BR2ASH
R TNEREANMBEERYBAE
Al AN E BT B RELERNFEIRK
BRI EHREERIE I (WER) #E
NZEMEH - ZIETRERREEE
FRmEENE 1BRIMAERZ FEH
8 B 4R B R B R o Pl IO AN S B 3F 4 B 1
BEVBRELAFE IR EETHRE -
ZIERTH AR E B BT E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT.EMENTS
AW PR W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ_—=

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

—NF=A=T—HIFE

2%

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

(continued)

. HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in HKAS
40 which differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or a business
combination . The amendment is applied prospectively
for acquisition of investment properties. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as the
Group did not acquire any investment properties
during the year and so this amendment is not

applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The
main impact on the consolidated financial statements is on
the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S;i'ATE ENTS

V8 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

HKFRS 9

BB WS ERE 95
HKFRS 15

AW ELERZE 155
Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ERE 1R BT
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
BEAGTHERIE 1657 R
BB GEERIE 38R ZEF]
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
BEBGTHERIE 165 R
BERBGEERE 4R 2EF]
Amendments to HKAS 27
BB ERE 279 2 1E85]
Amendments to HKFRSs
AR WELER (85T
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

AR WELERZE 1055 &
EBGEIERIZE 2857 2 185]

Amendments to HKFRS 11

AR EWELERE 1158 21E85]

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

BB W ELERE 1057
BB MELERE 125 K
BBGEERIE 2857 2 185]

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 1

ERFITRESTEEMEREERN

((HEEMHEEEN]) @)
CHEMEREMZHITREEITEEBTE
&2 A

Financial Instruments?

BT A

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
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Disclosure Initiative?

wERETEI?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation?
EEAET 2 IE REIEA A

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
BE¥  EEREWD?

Equity method in Separate Financial Statements?
TS BT TR 2 R A
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-20142
BBV HRELEN T ——FE2 T UF R FENRE?
Sales or Contributions of Assets between an Investor

and Its Associate or Joint Venture®
REERABRENTNEENEMEELEIIRAS
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations?
WA KSR 2 g2
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception?

REEE  BRAKAARZHISMER?

WZZ—N\F—A— B SAERR 2 FE B ER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 2 MZZE— R F—A— BB 2 TR A -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be B G T E B RSk bA R B sA 2 5 FZ AR AR R -
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that except as
described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a FVTOCI
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or 10ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ER#HITREEIEEMBEEERN

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TEEMBEEEN]) ()

(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) ERMBERELEAFIFMETE |(&F)

o HKFRS 9 introduces a new model which is more . %;%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ ERAFEIRSIAFER - B
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management )& R B E PR S BT B 7S IE R
activities undertaken by companies when hedging WHM«WH EREBHETCERE
their financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a P ERNRRBIBEREZ T X BB
principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 looks at whether a B EEREIREETRAB I G ]
risk component can be identified and measured and HARErE M TR IEE & IE
does not distinguish between financial items and non- MEIER - BANEATEEEIEA
financial items. The new model also enables an entity HEBREEENON AR ERHER
to use information produced internally for risk Hmerr o ZiE o RIBER B ERE
management purposes as a basis for hedge 3905 - A RETEBESTEAE IR
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit ZHRTEEBEASTEMNMETZFE
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in TBINE - R INBEE ERIEY
HKAS 39 using metrics that are designed solely for WEBIEGTIEREBREPERAEE Y
accounting purposes. The new model also includes OB TS o B BRI P] DA R f B IR 2R
eligibility criteria but these are based on an economic BT f#RZEATRSERS + B
assessment of the strength of the hedging BT ZOWME - AR BB ER
relationship. This can be determined using risk FEIFEHFEEME - ﬁ"mz/l BWIT
management data. This should reduce the costs of BRAR o

implementation compared with those for HKAS 39
hedge accounting because it reduces the amount of
analysis that is required to be undertaken only for
accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 will become effective for annual periods beginning BBV BREENEIRER =T —N\F—A

on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. —H¥zEABzFERREER - WA IZATE
}EH °

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption RAREFEHRRKEREBNBRSERE

of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on 9%ﬁT§€§§TZJX‘§@9M%§FK&EM‘“E\% i

amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets LHBEEEATE

and financial liabilities.

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable A EEANEETKAFAERR - RETE
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been ZEBEET AT
completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer,
(i Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should
decide, taking into consideration all relevant facts and
circumstances, how it aggregates information in the
financial statements, which include the notes. An entity
does not require to provide a specific disclosure required by
a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a list
of specific requirements or describe them as minimum
requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

() an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(i significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included
with related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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G B R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue
based depreciation methods for property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue
based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only in the
following limited circumstances:

(i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

(i) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define bearer
plants. Biological assets that meet the definition of bearer
plants are no longer accounted for under HKAS 41, but
under HKAS 16 instead. The produce growing on bearer
plants continues to be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 41.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively.

As the Group does not have any biological assets, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 will
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the
equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. As a result of the amendments, the entity can
choose to account for these investments either:

()  atcost;

(i) inaccordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

(i) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for
financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied retrospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in
associates or joint ventures, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycles

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one
of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in
a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee
and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the
additional disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety are
required. Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify
that disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is
no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the
notes to the interim financial statements 'if not disclosed
elsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendments
to HKAS 34 clarify that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements
and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim
financial report must be available to users on the same
terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycles
(continued)

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint
venture and associate. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that constitutes or contains a business to a joint
venture or associate in full. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that does not constitute or contain a business to a
joint venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated
investors” interests in that joint venture or associate.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide new guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combination. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation of a
joint operation if and only if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 will become effective for
financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKFRS 11 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify the requirements when accounting
for investment entities as well as provide relief in particular
circumstances, which will reduce the costs of applying the
Standards. Specifically, a parent entity that is a subsidiary of
an investment entity is exempted from preparing
consolidated financial statements. A parent entity which is
also a subsidiary of an investment entity and hold interests
in associates and joint ventures is exempted from applying
equity method if it meets all the conditions stated in
paragraph 4(a) of HKFRS 10.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception (continued)

Besides, the amendments clarify if an investment entity has
a subsidiary that is not itself an investment entity and whose
main purpose and activities are providing investment related
services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities to the entity or other parties, it should consolidate
that subsidiary. If the subsidiary that provides the
investment-related services or activities is itself an
investment entity, the investment entity parent should
measure that subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss. If
an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment
entity, the entity may, when apply the equity method, retain
the fair value measurement applied by that investment
entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries.

Furthermore, if a parent that is an investment entity and has
measured all of its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss, that investment entity should present the disclosures
relating to investment entities required by HKFRS 12 in its
financial statements. If an investment entity has
consolidated its subsidiary in which the subsidiary itself is
not an investment entity and whose main purpose and
activities are providing services that relate to the investment
activities of its investment entity parent, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 apply to financial statements in
which the investment entity consolidates that subsidiary.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will
become effective for financial statements with annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

As the Company does not have any investments in
investment entities, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in the exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 6.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities
at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(@)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting
policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

] deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’'s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which
cannot exceed one year from acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subseguent periods. On disposal of
the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

70 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold
and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Service income is recognised at the completion of the
service rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income arising from sales of financial instruments is
recognised on the completion of transfer of risks and
rewards to the transferee.

Dividend income from investments (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale investments) is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(g

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. EEEEE @)

(continued)

(g) Foreign currencies (continued) (g) Hhe&&)
Exchange differences arising on settlement of HEEKIEE RMEEBIEE MELRE
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary HEBDREELBRANERANER -
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in BMRERAFEY R IFEEIAEFT
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on EAERZEFABRZAN - HEMR
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair BEBEREMEBERAEMEERZEA
value are included in profit or loss for the period R IEEWEIE B FTE AR X ERERIN
except for exchange difference arising on retranslation RZIBRT » [BHEZEIRE M2 EK
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and wmNER °
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial HETGAMBEREMS » AEEEI
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's (% (BENELRE) 2EERAEY
foreign operations (including comparatives) are RMEMRBRERETES - A
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates EHTIER (BEAALERE) HIZER
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income FEIRE RIGE - BRIFEAAGE R KB -
and expense items (including comparatives) are RUEAT  BEgRAXSERCEX
translated at the average exchange rates for the BRE -FELEELEZE(WE)RAME
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly HiamiER - WRBERER AR -
during that period, in which case the exchange rates BEBINEBE - AREEB ABLZ
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange XA RER R 2 ENZREHEN
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other DEEEER °
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable U BB g INE TS EE A 2 P B R Bt P UBE ]
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on the SR EERFTAEABRELZAFER
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets B BELEINEBCEEREBERE
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated Wiz & iﬁiﬂﬁﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ% o FTE4XE
at the rate prevailing at the end of each reporting P H RN E 2 S R
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o HF#4mE &R ilTEE AR A A
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

@i

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong operate a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on percentage of
Employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment benefits

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 5(t)())
M.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

®

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets or liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including owner
occupied land and buildings held for use in the supply
of service, or administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below),
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HERE
Furniture, fixtures and equipments
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5% — 20% per annum
FF5% =20%
15% —33'/,% per annum

B RERRE HF15% £337.%
Motor vehicles 10 - 20% per annum
HE B 10% = 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of relevant
lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or l0ss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit
or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee and
overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets are
completed and ready for use, the carrying amount of
the assets will be reclassified to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as set out above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(U]

Intangible assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use.

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o It is technically feasible to complete the product
for it to be sold;

o Adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o The Group is able to sell the product;

o Sale of the product will generate probable future
economic benefits; and

o Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(m)

80

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Intangible assets other than goodwill
(continued)

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.

EEanEEE SFUES

—NF=A=T—HIFE

5. EEREBRm@)

U}

(m)

BB BIVEE (&)

NHREEZELEE —
BH(#)
NMELEZBTLEENERERZEER
RZBVEEERTE LIMERREZ
FHEEL 2 P A% o W EE R A RRE
EZEVEERN THER RERXARN
ELBRRNERNER /X -

MERER

RINEHERE  NEEL BV EER
HBVWE B EERRELEFTE
BB R HE KRR EBEZRE -

M EHEANELHRAER R -

BHRRELEE
BREAENHERRERAEARLE
ﬁE;§§$$§$$XZ%/g*‘Jmﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁ

- BUHMEREBINEEMEL 2 W
&Eﬂaﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ/i%ﬁiﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EEEZEZHTE  LRBURERZE
ERMEm AR

BEREREE (BERMD) 2RE

RERERR  AEERMEAFAR
ERAFHMzERRBETLEEZRAE
NHEETETMBRBTRZEEED
HERBERRE - MEFEEMNEBTR
Bt EEZ KBS - NEFERE
BiRZRE () o i AT s A E R
BEzAROSHE AAXREESHFE
EfEReELEM 2 AIREEEE -

Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ—ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁ
HER B EEELEFET—
KRB REREEP] e ER#E
BRI -

TT/UZ

ERRAF
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5.

G B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

excluding goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, of
which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

84 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS financial
assets”)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. EEEEE @)
(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued) n) BMETIE#E
Impairment of financial assets BB EERE
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are TRV EFABR 2 HBEENIN B
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of BEERSRERRTHBETR - H
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered ERBEBEBFPMBEERVTHERE
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, B —IBRZ B EBRRE M ARK
as a result of one or more events that occurred after ReEnEvERE  RIUBEERERD
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the A ©
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.
For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant A ERAREMS - MBEZES
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security ZAVFEEETHRIFBEERRENR
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence BIAR BRE 2 BEEE -
of impairment.
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of HETBEHMMBEEMS  TEREE
impairment could include: BA B
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or . BITAIRSGHFHRERUBKRE
counterparty; or L)
. breach of contract, such as default or . BREL R EHASMHHIE
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or MRS RIE MR ¢ 3K
. it becoming probable that the borrower will . BRI BE M ER AR EE S TR IS &
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or 4 3k
. the disappearance of an active market for that . 2B T A IR B S R B i S O B2
financial asset because of financial difficulties. M5 e
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade B THEBI G E E (I ERRR) 2 @5
receivables, are assessed for impairment on an FHERE - BRIEBE 2 ZERERER
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for BREAEEBEREGIE LR - BH
receivables could include the Group’s past experience B8 MR FRER B o0 K B K e
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of WK TE AR B8 2 B K Sk AN M A B AR L B
delayed payments that pass the credit period, as well BE) o
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o HF#4mE &R ilTEE AR A A
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for similar financial
assets. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which
the impairment takes place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowing, trade
and other payables, amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiary, amounts due to directors
of subsidiaries and amounts due to related companies
of subsidiaries) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would not be material,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

5.

[
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NOTES TO TH
=i EA RS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Derecoghnition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and
direct expenses that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less all
estimated expenses to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hands, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefit is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
aview to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale (see (d) above), if earlier.
It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

o the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

o the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs of disposal,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a person or an entity is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(@) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the

Group.

or
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —ZE—NF=A=1+—HIFFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are the members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of another entity (or of an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is @ member).

(3)  both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(6)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) aperson is identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of the parent of the entity).

(8) the entity, or any member of the Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Share-based payment transactions
(i) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(1)

@)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Share options granted to employees

For share options granted to employees,
the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The effect of the change in estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/
Cconsultants

For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair value of
the goods or serves received. The fair
values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(®

(u)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment
transactions
For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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96

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

@

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. There was no impairment 10ss recognised on
goodwill during the year ended 31 March 2016.
Impairment loss of HK$42,000,000 was recognised on
goodwill during the year ended 31 March 2015. More
details are given in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of other intangible assets
The Group determines whether its intangible assets
not yet available for use is impaired on an annual
basis. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of other
intangible assets as at 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$46,000,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$62,000,000).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment at
the end of each reporting period. They are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2016 was approximately HK$11,822,000 (31
March 2015: HK$32,201,000).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 6.

ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) A TREM 2T ERR (&)

(iv) Depreciation (iv) &
Iltems of property, plant and equipment are M- BMERXBEEEUNERENEE
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated HETAI A FEHITE - ERa kAR
useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the HEBE ~EETHRNEEMEAE
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the BFEH WEEEMREBEHE I
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order ERY - nERFHEAEBEENUE
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to ECBAKRET - Wit RTEFHEITE
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful b BEFBFHEERNEY  BEAPHE
lives are based on the Group's historical experience WERYBFHAR RZZT—X~F=A
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated =+—B 9% BEEXEZERAE
technologies changes. The depreciation expense for #7/711,8220008 T (ZF—HF = A
future periods is adjusted if there are significant =+—H :32,201,000%7T) °
changes from previous estimates. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2016 was approximately HK$11,822,000 (31
March 2015: HK$32,201,000).

7. REVENUE 7. k&
(@)  An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as (@ AEBFAZKEITNT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FFEREER
Anti-aging and stem cell NRER BN ER
technology businesses
— Provision of anti-aging services — RENEEZRS 7,923 16,245
Trading business BS¥K
— Sales of electronic components —HEEFEM 95,148 36,971
— Sales of metals —HESB - 252,550
95,148 289,521
Money lending business HEFEH
— Interest income from loan — REEKE R F BMA
receivables 19,971 14,313
Securities investment business BHEREEK
— Dividend income — BREWA 330 -
123,372 320,079
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REVENUE (continued) 7. & @)
(b)  An analysis of the Group's other revenue and net () AEEFNZEMKERWAFBDSHT
income for the year is as follows: RN
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations RS ER
Exchange gain [ 5 e = 11
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BENMKREZWZE
plant and equipment - 68
Interest income on: FEWA -
— Bank deposits —RITER 6 M
— Other loans receivables — HAb R E R 366 3,715
Rental income M A = 372
Sundry income FETEUWA 6 289
378 4,466

GAIN ON DEREGISTRATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
deregistered two subsidiaries which were engaged in
investment in funeral and related businesses previously.
The Group submitted the liquidation financial statements of
these subsidiaries to relevant tax bureau and obtained
approval of the tax bureau to cancel the tax registration and
then the business registration in last year. In the opinion of
the directors the Company, the Group had no further
obligations in respect of these subsidiaries. Accordingly, the
net liabilities recorded by these subsidiaries of
approximately HK$5,595,000 and translation reserve of
approximately HK$1,579,000 were released upon
deregistration of these subsidiaries. No cash flows was
recorded with respect to the deregistration of subsidiaries
in last year.

B 1B 4> B R OH o oz My 22

HE-T-—AE=-A=1+—AILtEE K&£H
BUEMENEB AR 2 ZmERB AR TR
RIE BB NRABEREE - ASEREET
BREXZEMB AR ZEEMBEHRE TR
KEREREBIETUE RS M R E & EUH
BEER - AAREERE  ASERZEN
BARYWEAEMEMT - At - ZEWBRFIAT
8515 2 BIEFEXY 5,595,000 78 7T M FE H 4
1,579,000 7% 7T 1A 5% S5 Mt B~ &) BUE sE i 14 7
B o £ E R B A T BUS S MRS (IR

A~y =—1
EFinE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=F— NF=A=+—HILFE
9. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 9. RERBEEEXEBZRMAELR
OPERATIONS
Loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group has REBREFERLEEB 2R ATEEE MK
been arrived at after charging: IS
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B T A (BIEEEHSD)
— Salaries and other benefits — He REMEF 13,009 22,865
— Contributions to defined contributions — — [\ 7E B4 2GR K@ FET 214 20
retirement benefits schemes 324 672
13,333 23,537
Auditors’ remuneration ZERAT N &
— audit services — BZART 800 750
— non-audit services — EFZRB - -
Depreciation of property, Y~ BE MR EITE
plant and equipment 8,356 8,112
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEW R R 2 R E R 18 51 -
Legal and professional fees (Note) FEREEERKFE) 5,819 7,312
Operating lease rentals in respect of EHRBEEME LEHENRS
rented premises 9,975 12,241
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZRAE 92,420 288,151
Note: During the year, legal and professional fees included equity-settled HMizF: FR-EERZEERRERTAQRERZAE
share-based payments in aggregated amounts of approximately w7 REE KA REME 2 A $£494,723,000
HK$4,723,000 granted to consultants of the Company (2015: BT (ZZ—F4F : 4,487,000 7T) °
HK$$4,487,000).
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INCOME TAX 10. FAife#R

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

RiFEEEREMEEBERZMSHAX
i

2016 2015
—XEF —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(Restated)

(&%)

Continuing operations P A ETS
Current tax BNERR 18
Hong Kong B 1,729
PRC enterprise income tax HR B (b S FTIS R -
1,729
Overprovision in prior year WA FERERE
Hong Kong BB (10)
PRC enterprise income tax RS -
(10)
Tax reduction R
Hong Kong BB (10)
PRC enterprise income tax HR B (b B FTISR -
(10)
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERRIE (K77E25) -
1,709

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the PRC
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits at
the rates prevailing in the PRC.

BBFBR TR F NG ERT R A B &=
16.5% (ZZ—RF : 16.5%) T2 B -

PEMEMERIIZGFHIRE P E 2 R
FAFR BIERTT I R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—Z—

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

NF=ZA=F—HILFE

10.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to

the loss before tax as follows:

FrisiR (@)
ATER R AT B YR Y REERERESM
T

11.

102

2016 2015
—RE “ET—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tt
(Restated)
(E%1))
Loss before tax from BEREER
continuing operations KT B E R (41,111) (77,175)
National tax on loss before tax, BREATEEzAER
calculated at the tax rates applicable LR R AR EA
to profits in the jurisdictions concerned FMEHHERTE (9,838) (14,869)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERBMUA 2 G E (61) (5,187)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AATH0BR A S RS Al f0 %R
and loss not allowable ElEZHETE 5,874 18,059
Tax effect of temporary difference RERG =5 2K
not recognised - (315) 274
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RERGFRIEBEZ
not recognised Mg 5,123 4,288
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses A LRI RERBIERE
not previously recognised B2 (47) (836)
Tax reduction AR (40) (10)
Overprovision in previous year BEFEE 7 BB R (40) (10)
Income tax expense for the year REEFEHEY 656 1,709

There was no income tax recognised in other comprehensive
income and directly in equity (2015: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 19 June 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in the Wuyan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited (“Tianxi Hotel”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company to the purchaser for a consideration of
RMBS5 million. The disposal was effected in order to dispense
with the need for further capital injection and to avoid
further costs that would be incurred for the lease of hotel
property and the management of the hotel operation.
Details of the disposal were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 June 2015. The details of assets
and liabilities disposed of and the calculation of loss on
disposal of Tianxi Hotel at the date of disposal are disclosed
in Note 29. As a result of the disposal, the Group
discontinued all of its hotel business. In accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, their results were therefore
classified as discontinued operations.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. BERILEEE @)
The results of the hotel businesses for the year ended 31 BHE-_ZT—XFk_ZT—AF=A=+—H8H1t
March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: FEBEEB 2 EEWNT ¢
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBx FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover e 1,429 4,076
Cost of sales SHEMK AR (243) (666)
Gross profit EF 1,186 3,410
Other revenue and net income Hoh e as R AFEE 13 39
Administrative and other operating TR EALEAS
expenses (2,773) (13,126)
Loss before tax FRBLATE B (1,574) (9,677)
Income tax Frisai = -
Loss for the year rEEBRE (1,574) (9.677)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary s B AR 2 EE
(Note 29) (FF5E29) (4,095) -
Loss for the year from discontinued ZQF#EAEABLCTKRIEEE>
operation attributable to owners REEEE
of the Company (5,669) (9,677)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=F— NF=A=+—HILFE

=P
.

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. BRIEXEE @)
Loss before tax from discontinuing operations of the Group REERIHE AR 2 BRI EBE MR T3
has been arrived at after charging: FI8 -
2016 2015
—E-REF —F-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA (BIEEZESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ ek 1,353 5,270
— Contributions to defined contributions — — [AIE B ZOR KB 5T 214 X
retirement benefits schemes = -
Depreciation of property, YE - BENMERETE
plant and equipment 506 1,160
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 243 666
Cash flows generated from discontinued operation FEECRILEEBRELECRERE
of the Group
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Operating activities KEEE) (487) 2,045
Investing activities HEEE (21) (12,889)
Financing activities BEES = 11,364
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be Rt RASFEE (508) 520
12. DIVIDEND 12. BRR
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 HEZZ—R"F=A=1+—HLEFEIERN
March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the SEBTARE - BREHARARITEREZT
end of the reporting period (2015: Nil). ARE(ZE—hEF : &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —ZE—NF=A=1+—HIFFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BEREGR
(@) Basic loss per share @) EREXREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on BRERNBEIRE T 7 8UETE -

the following data:

2016 2015
—REF T —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
(Restated)
2]
Loss for the year attributable to RAEIHEB AFEMS
owners of the Company REEEE
— from continuing operations — REHERLER (36,498) (71,457)
— from discontinued operations — KRB SR (5,669) (9,677)
— from continuing and — REFELER
discontinued operations BRI GBS (42,167) (81,134)
Weighted average number 2016 2015
of ordinary shares ZERMEFITE —E-RE —ZE—AfF
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April MROA—BZB#TE Bk 3,950,332,805  3,950,332,805
Effect of ordinary shares issued EETTmk s e 187,786,885 -
4,138,119,690 3,950,332,805
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREFEHE
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company did HE-_ZT-—R"E=A=+—HIEFE"
not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the AR RN AR BB RS U 2 R
year ended 31 March 2015, the computation of diluted fReBEZTE-—RAF=A=+—HILF
loss per share does not assume the exercise of the B ArEEREEEERTEREAR
Company’s share options granted under Share Option AIRREE AR AT & (52 27) i 2 AR
Scheme (Note 27) because the exercise price of those REEITE - BN SERE 21T
options was higher than the average market price. ERRFEmE -
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 HARARTIEREETEREELAZ BT
March 2015 has not been disclosed as the potential ORI AEBREZE T —RF=A
shares arising from exercise of the Company’s share = t-HILEFEZEREE HEAA
options would decrease the loss per share of the RESERZE - SR EHETREEEE -

Group and are regarded as anti-dilutive.
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segment information is based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (“CEQ").

The Group's operating segments and the type of products
and services from which each segments derives its
revenues are as follows:

()  Anti-aging and stem -
cell technology
businesses

Provision of anti-aging
services; distribution of
biomedical and life science
products; health check
and beauty service
Trading of electronic
components and metals
Provision loan financing

(i) - Trading business -

(i) Money lending -

business services
(iv) Securities — Trading and investment of
investment business securities

(v) Hotel operation -
business (discontinued
during the year)

Operation of hotel

No operating segments identified by the CEO have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 5.

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the CEO monitors the results, assets and
liabilities to each reportable segments on the following
basis:

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each
segment including items disclosed in other segment
information below, net of administrative and other operating
expenses directly attributable to each segment without
allocation corporation income and expenses, gain on
deregistration of subsidiaries, gain on derecognition of
contingent consideration payable, impairment of goodwill,
impairment of other intangible assets, impairment of deposit
paid for property, plant and equipment and loss on disposal
of a subsidiary.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets

and current assets with the exception of intercompany
receivables and other corporate assets.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—F— N NF=A=+—HIFFZE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
intercompany payables and other corporate liabilities.

Information regarding the above segments is reported

B E—AFEZ = +— AL

14. ¥EEHE @)
SHEABAESEEBEEE Y EREXREM
FEREIE - A BEARBEMRER L E
EafE-

BRLASBZERZHMT

below:
(@) Segment revenue and results (@ 2DBRHEREE
2016 Discontinuing
Continuing operations operations

ZE-RE BEREER KiHEEER
Anti-aging
&stem cel Money  Securities Inter- Hotel
technology Trading lending  investment  Segment operations
businesses husiness husiness busingss  elimination Sub-total husiness Total
HRER
& % il
S g7%8 HEER REER  AEEEE Nt BEER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T T Thn

Revene i

Extermal customer IREP

Inter-segrent HER

Total %

Segments resuls MExE

Impaiment of deposit paid o kENE - BRER

acquisition of property, plant ECEUPAEES

and equipment

Impairment of EVEENE

intangiole assets

Unallocated corporate FABEEMA

income

Unallocated corporate AAEEERY

expenses

Loss on disposal of a HE-HEHBRAZ

subsidiary Fi

Loss before tax RHEE

107
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZ=ZF—
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

108

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

14. ¥EEE @)
(@ 2EREREEE)

015 Discontinuing
Continuing operations Operations
“5-hF BETEEE BHEERE
Ant-aging &
stem cell Mongy  Securiies Inter- Hotel
technology Trading lending ~~ investment Segment Operations
Dusingsses Dusiness husiness business  elimination Sub-fotal husiness Total
nEER
21 25 il
UL 55K HERH % HERHH gt BEXH 4E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$1000
T T T Tin T Thn T Fin
Revenue e
External customer REE 16,205 2952 14313 - - 320,079 4076 324155
Inter-segment R - - - - - - - -
Total % 16,205 28950 14313 - - 320,079 4076 324155
Segments results AREE (21,669 (11,742 13195 (3,38) - (56,602 0.477) (66,279)
Impairment of goodwil BERE 42,000 - (42,000
Unallocated corporate FABEENA
income 3716 - 376
Unallocated corporate FAREERY
£xpenses (17472 - (17472
(Gain on deregistration HEAFREHR
0f Subsicliaries e 4016 - 4016
(Gain on derecognition TEERER SR
of contingent tE2hE
consideration payable 31167 - 31167
0ss before tax BREEE (17179 9617) (86852
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %= —

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. ¥EEHE @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) PWEERER

Discontinuing

2016 Continuing operations operations

ZE-RE RESEXE REEEER
Anti-aging

& stem cell Money Securities Hotel

technology Trading lending  investment operations

businesses business business husiness Sub-total business Total

hRER

il 25 B

S B5%H HEEH REXR it gEXR 88
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Tén Tén Tén T#n Tén TEn Tén

Segment assets AEEE
Unallocated assets KPEEE
Consolidated assets GAEE
Segments liabiites AEER

Unallocated fiablties AOBER

Consoldated liablies FhEE

Discontinuing

015 Continuing operations operations

5-1F RERELE BIHEEEE
Anti-aging &

stem cell Money Securties Hotel

technology Trading lending investment operations

husinesses husiness husiness business Sub-total Dusiness Total

nEER

i FHRE B

GUES) VLSS HERH ) it 2E:H R
HK 000 HKS 000 HKS1000 HKS1000 HK$1000 HKS 000 HK 000
TR Th TRT TEL TEL ThT TR

Segment assets NEBE 20869 51571 105014 38,245 222205 14,600 236,800
Unallocated asses AOBEE 79,860 - 79,860
Consolidated assets GAEE 316,665
Segments iabilties HEEE um 87 130 - 15490 24681 18174
Unallocated ligbilties APERE 474 - 4171
Consoldated liabities FABE 52,348
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14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

110

(0

14. ¥EEE @

Other segment information () EfttoBEHR
Discontinuing
2016 Continuing operations operations
“E-RE BREEEY RiEfeER
Anti-aging
&stem cell Money ~ Securities Hotel
technology Trading lending  investment operations
businesses business business business  Sub-total business Total
RhEER
#ik &% i1
RiTEH BAEH HEEH RE£H gt EELH 4g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T TiEn TEn TEn T TEn
Interest income* FlasAx
Interest expenses HEFE
Depreciation and amortization MERES
mpairment of intanglle asset EVAERE
Impgirment of deposit paid for JUEDE BER
oquistion of property, REXHZTRHE
plant and equipment
Additions to non-current NEEERERTE
segment asset during HEEE
the year
* Exclude interest income in turnover * TRFEELEERZFBHA
Discontinuing
015 Continuing operations operations
“E-1f FEIEERE BIHBERE
Antiagng8
stem cel Money — Securities Hotel
technology Trading lending ~ investment operations
Dusinesses business business husiness Sub-total husingss Total
hEzR
#40 BHRE B
GUES S-S S (3 £% g EERE g
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T Thn TiEn ThETL T ThEL T
Interest income* FEMA 1 9 - 0 2 12
Interest expenses flems R - R _ B B
Depreciation and amortization TEREH 4973 2708 - 7681 1,160 8,8
Impairment of goodwil HENE 4000 - - 42000 - 42000
Addiions to non-current NEEETRER
segment asset during RENBEAE
the year 2,694 235 - 5049 12889 7938
* Exclude interest income in turnover * TOFEE R Y R B A
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

(e)

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(W A
/.

14. FWEHR @

Geographical information d) HEER
The following table sets out information about the TEEHNEBOERAIIRERE 2z
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue from REEWE MERSLE EFLE
external customers and (i) the group’s property, plant LEE((HEIEREBEE]) REMIBEN
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill BZER  c R ZHIBAE HENIRM
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical RGN EREMNE - BTIERH
location of customers is based on the location at BEZHBUENEREEERATEM
which the services were provided or the goods B(HYWE - MERXEmNS) RES
delivered. The geographical location of the specified B 2 a0 B (S EEAEREEmMS) -
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment
and the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and
goodwill.
2016 Revenue from Specified
—E—-XEF external non-current
customers assets
IREFZKNE BEXERBEE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Hong Kong B 25,655 55,858
PRC F 99,146 4,473
124,801 60,331
2015 Revenue from Specified
—E-hF external non-current
customers assets
INEREP Wz FEFREBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHBT
Hong Kong BB 28,142 76,749
PRC s 296,013 49,655
324,155 126,404
Information about major customers (e) FTEFXFZEH
Analysis of revenue from transactions with a single AT AEAREBEWRE10%HIA L2 BE—
external customer amount to 10% or more of the INREPR G2 Wam D
Group's revenue is as follows:
Operating segment External customer
ReENE PIREF
Number Revenue
2B &
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE ZT—hF ZB-XRFE ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Trading business B 5 %% 1 4 95,148 265,784
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i)
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EEMS

RBAIER ETRR - BEQBEHE
BBMEE AR (BKBREEMEER) R
PIF2MEBEAFEEEHEMT

2016 —EB—XRE
Discretionary
bonus and
performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
and other incentive benefits
Fees benefits ~ payments schemes Total
miE
FeR  RARERR iR
e HitER HERBAR  BHFEER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr TER TiEn TEx TiEn
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun b
Mr. Lu Zhigiang BEREE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERHEE
Mr. Jiang Hongging ZHELE
Ms. Li Mei (Note a) Zigt (fizta)
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Note b) T/MEZ L (HzEb)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo xRt
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming HEABEE
Mr. Chan Yun Hing BB A
Mr. Gui Qiangfang L
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE
(Note ¢) (Hgtc)

Note a:  Appointed on 14 December 2015.
Note b:  Resigned on 10 March 2016.
Note ¢: Retired on 7 August 2015.

Mata: W=
Miztb: MZZ—RNF=A+HEE -

T-A+-AtMEEEE-

Hste: W-ZT—RAFN\ALHARE-
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L ¥
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (i)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
Company'’s directors are as follows:

15, EERIAEREFREAZHE W)

= EAE )
ENRKENARRZESTZMENT

2015 —E—AHE
Discretionary
bonus and
performance  Contributions
Salaries related  to retirement
and other incentive benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
BT R
ek R RIREM
e HEH REAR SRR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET THT FET THT
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun ML 504 - - - 504
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EXBLE 504 - - - 504
Mr.ChuHong Pong (Notea)  KiEFB 4% 4 (Hfzta) - - - - -
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau Bk s - 640 - 18 658
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHELE 504 - - - 504
Mr. Cai Da (Note b) B (Hf7D) 120 - - - 120
Ms. Ding Xiaomei T/t
(Note ¢) (Hizte) 307 - - - 307
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo wXaT 1,000 - - - 1,000
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMAE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Yun Hing PR S 100 - - _ 100
Mr. Gui Qiangfang HEF AL 100 - - - 100
Mr. Hung Yat Ming ARRLAE 100 - - - 100
3,339 640 - 18 3997

Hizta: R-ZT—NF+-A=+IBEHT-
HizEb : RZZT—MHENAMBRE -
Hiztc: RZZ—NFNAZ+_BHEZE-

Note a:  Resigned on 29 December 2014.
Note b: Retired on 4 August 2014.
Note ¢: Appointed on 22 August 2014.
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

114

(M

(ii)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for the
loss of office (2015: Nil).

There was no emoluments waived by any directors
during the year.

The directors consider that they are the only key
management personnel of the Group and details for
their emoluments have been set out above.

Five highest paid employees

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included 2 (2015: 2) directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining non-director highest paid individual are
as follows:

@

(ii)

15. EERAEREHERZME (&)

EEMeE (&)
RAFERN  AEBWESZHME TE
AIEEERIMARE B R HRS|EE N
AREB B RIEABBEE(ZE
—RF E) e

FATEBERNEERENT -

EXZRA BERASEENIEERE
AB BEREME 2F BN EXH
5I) e

EIEREHER

FR AEARSHFALTEEME(ZE
—hF:MB)EF AENREMEZF
BERLEXHI - B THREHIFEEA
TZzMEwT

2016 2015

—E—XE —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMER 2,668 5,222

Contributions to retirement RIKEFET SR

benefits schemes 45 53
Discretionary and performance Y5 R R IBEEER R

related incentive payments = -

2,713 5,275

Emoluments of the non-director highest paid
individual(s) fell within the following bands:

REFFEEALTZMENFTIEE :

Number of individual(s)

AE
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T IT 2 1,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T 1 -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

4,000,001 % 7T % 4,500,000 % 7T -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W¥%  BERBH

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements equipment Vehicles in progress Total
Bh - £E
HEEE e RE ERIR aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt THET Tk T TAL
Cost: R
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-NERA—H 12,778 11,583 9,051 - 33412
Additions RE 8,482 1570 4717 3170 17,939
Disposals L& - G - - 6]
Exchange adjustments 3RS 3 2 7 (1 1
At31March 2015 and RZE-RE=A=T-Hk
1 April 2015 —Z-RFEA-A 21,263 13,149 13,775 3169 51,35
Additions e - 77 - - 77
Disposals e (3,082) 219) - - (3,301)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE—HHBAR (7,963) (1,516) (300) (3183 (12.962)
Exchange adjustments B AR (212) 83) 416) 14 (697)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-RF=Zf=1—H 10,006 11,408 13,059 - 34,473
Accumulated amortization, 2ETEY MERAE:
(epreciation and impairment:
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-mEMA—H 4,461 3424 1,998 - 9,883
Charge for the year FEER 4,69 2,261 2319 - 9.272
Eliminated on disposals HERYH - ] - - ]
Exchange adjustments 3RS 2 1 1 - 4
At 31 March 2015 and at RZE-RF=A=T-Ak
1 April 2015 “Z-RFNA-A 9,155 5,682 4318 - 19,155
Charge for the year FEER 4,251 1,870 2,741 - 8,862
Eliminated on disposals HER L (3,082) 219 - - (3,3301)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR (1242) (362) (66) - (1,670)
Exchange adjustments EBTECES (187) 63) (145) - (395)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-~E=A=+-H 8,895 6,908 6,848 = 22,651
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 March 2016 R-E—REZA=1-H 1,11 4500 6,211 - 11822
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-A%=fA=1-H 12,108 7,467 9457 3,169 32,201
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

—NE=A=T—HIFE

17. HtEEEE

Licences
=)
HK$'000
FET
Cost: B
At 1 April 2014, at 31 March 2015, RZZE—NFMNA—H RZZE—HF
at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 —A=+—H RZ-Z—HFEWMA—H
- RF=ZA=+—H 62,000
Accumulated depreciation and 2T S SR E B8
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2014, at 31 March 2015 and RZZE—NEMA—A RN —h%F
at 1 April 2015 =A=+—BERR-_Z—REMA—H -
Impairment loss recognised for the year REFBRREREER 16,000
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=A=1+—~H 16,000
Net carrying amount: AREDFE :
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—R"F=A=+—H 46,000
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=A=1+—H 62,000
The other intangible assets represent 3 exclusive licences HEtEPEEERBARZE —=FRMKE

on 3 patents granted by the holders to a subsidiary acquired
in the year 2013. Details of acquisition of other intangible
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary are set out in the

MEAFERE=ZBEENZ=
UL BE B BB A A
NERE AT

MERERIR - BB
ESEMELEEZFHBTHARE
—=F=RZ+TNHZRAM -

Company's announcement dated 28 March 2013.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining useful lives of the exclusive licences.

BRI BRI 2 #R MERF N BEARORER
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17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Details of the useful of the exclusive licences are as follows:

Particulars of patent
BEFFHE

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. HfiEfRE @)

BRI EMFHFBWT

Expiry date of exclusive licence
granted to subsidiary
BRYWE AR ZBRIFAEZIHA

Method for constructing pancreatic stem cell line from
human insulin and differentiating to insulin secretion cell

—RBRAABRENRRBARINERRARSZ DWW AR

DERTE

Injectable temperature sensitive gel used for filling and repairing

damaged tissues
—EANERH B E X IBASN RTSNRBURE B

Injection gel containing submicron hyaluronic acid microspheres and

preparation method
—IEE A EHOKAE R E B R )T 515 B 8 E 5 %

As the management has still engaged in designation of
detailed production plan, the exclusive licenses have not yet
been in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Hence, no amortization is recognized for the
year.

The recoverable amounts of other intangible assets at the
end of the reporting period have been determined by the
directors of the Company on the basis of a fair value less
costs of disposal calculation using excess earning method
under income-based approach with reference to a
professional valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal
Limited. The recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions, including projected selling price, sale volume,
and selling and administrative cost. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation uses present value of profits
attributable to other intangible assets after deducting the
proportion of profits that are attributable to other
contributory assets and at a post-tax discount rate of
22.78% (2015: 20.82%). The profit forecast was based on the
latest estimation approved by the Group’s management
covering useful lives of the exclusive licenses. The Group
measured the fair value less costs of disposal of the other
intangible assets assuming their highest and best use by
market participants.

As at 31 March 2016, the recoverable amounts of other
intangible assets were lower than their carrying amounts,
and accordingly impairment loss of approximately
HK$16,000,000 was recognized during the year ended 31
March 2016 (2015: Nil). It was mainly due to the (i) increase
in discount rate and (ii) deferral of production plan.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation of other
intangible assets was classified as Level 3 measurement
under fair value hierarchy.

25 November 2031
—E=—F+—A=+HH

10 June 2031
—E=—FHATH
10 June 2031
—E=—FATH

MR ERENERTFALENS  BHRFFA
BERER A ERE R RGEHRERERET X
g o FILARFE A MR -

RI|EMR - BT EE 2 T RE SRR H A
RAEFEARAE 2 BINRRLEIR A FER
ERAE  W2EESERFEBERIFE
HZBEMHERS - TRESRERNETEIE
REx BRBEEE HERHEERITHX
Ko RPERMHERATEEAEMBELEE
FEAEENIRME - W EM S B EERE G
oW LB IR EK278% ( —F—HF:
20.82%) 5T 8 o i MITRM ERN A B EIEEH
JEST R pR AR 2 I R F M AT (A A - AR E
AEHEMETLEE 2 A VEREERAR - T
RERME2EEEAZEMBVEEZ &S R
RERE -

R-ZE—XRNE=ZA=+—HB HhEFREEZ
ARECHEERERERE ALREE-Z
—NEZAZ+—BIFEERRNEBEY
16,000,000/ 7L(ZF—HF : ) - TZ@HRK)
BRIR R EF R (i) A E AT B HAFT BR o

Hitv BV EEZ A FEBREEXRATHERER
FEERDBRE=FNFTEER -
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18. GOODWILL 18. W&
2016 2015
—E-REF —F-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost: B
Balance at beginning of year FY R 202,118 212,227
Derecognition on deregistration B A A BUH s B BUE RE R
of subsidiaries - (10,109)
Balance at end of year FREEH 202,118 202,118
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEDREEIE ¢
Balance at beginning of year F 4 (202,118) (170,227)
Derecognition upon deregistration B A A B s B BUE FE R
of subsidiaries - 10,109
Impairment losses recognised inthe year — FNHER Z W (EE B - (42,000)
Balance at end of year FREEH (202,118) (202,118)
Carrying amount at end of year FARIEEE - -

159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited
and its subsidiaries (“159 Group”)

For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test in
the year ended 31 March 2015, the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the cash-generating unit
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

19BLEBEEE(EB)ERATREK
BAa(1595%E )
WEHE_Z-—RAF=-A=t—HUIFEZFE
EEREARANE  ReEABM 2 RE®
BMOIRFEAEEFEET  mMERAEBENTER
AREKEEREIE 2 AFBIMEBERMSG
CHESRETEN - BBAFHIESRELE
BATyIhar R - ERETSHBRSE
A B FTACE T o RAFF IR E o

AAEEREERAZIEMR

Cash-generating unit Gross margin Growth rate Discount rate
REEEEN EFI=E BR= BRI =

% % %
Stem cell technology AR M B AT 2R 7S

businesses operations

72 10 17.3
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE
18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. M (m)
159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited BIBLBERE(FB)ERAAREM
and its subsidiaries (“159 Group”) (continued) BAR (15958 ]) (&)
According to the result of review of the calculation, the BB EFEZERER EEEETRZE_T
management determined that impairment loss of —AF=A=T—BIEFERAREEEL
approximately HK$42,000,000 was recognised for the year 42,000,000 7T - RAAK2EZFEREBES
ended 31 March 2015 because the recoverable amount with Z A SRR DREREE - i EZ2HER
reference to the value in use calculation was estimated to W RBE ARG E P AR ARE D FEH
be less than the carrying amount. It was mainly due to the BiETEA -
number of customers recorded in the current and prior
periods had not reached the expected target projection.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based ERERERAARERHEHEMSERE EHE
on past performance and its expectation for market EEREEMNE - TR RXRETEBE AN —
development. The growth rate used was consistent with the By o PRAIAEIR I MGt RARIE - I RERAERED 5
forecasts in industry trends. The discount rate used was B2 EERRE -
pre-tax and reflected specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. TI{EHERE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted equity investment in Spain, RAMRFZIELTRAKE -
at cost (Note) LR (B 72) 2,509 2,509
Note:  The unlisted available-for-sale investment is stated at cost less any MiiF - AREBEATEMGHEEA  EFRA/QFELT
accumulated impairment because the range of reasonable fair value AERI SRt 2 - MUOIF E AT HEHE IR ERK AR ER R
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that FTRESIRR -
the fair value cannot be measured reliably.
20. INVENTORIES 20, W
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Materials and consumables JR¥ B FEm 7 33
Finished goods RURK i = 7
7 90
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21.

120

Wi

bW 13

TS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BERREMEKRRIE
2016 2015
ZE—XREF —F-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Trade receivables (Note a) JEUERR (HizFa) 38,078 20,507
Deposit and prepayments e RENTIE 14,630 7,559
Loan receivables (Note b) EWE R (KIzFD) 181,271 111,481
Other receivables (Note ¢) H b U EIE (Mt c) 13,208 280
247,187 139,827
Notes: Bt -
(@) Trade receivables (a) R

An analysis of trade receivables by age, presented based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

RBEE A2 2 RUERFREATT

2016 2015

—E-AE TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

0-30days 0F30H 37,492 20,076
31-60 days 31260 H - 92
Over 60 days 60 B AL 586 339
38,078 20,507

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging from cash on
delivery to 90 days.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The management of the Group monitors the recoverable amount of
the trade debts and considers adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. In determining the recoverability
of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up
to the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, there are no trade receivables past
due and not impaired.

AEERETEEFPZEERNFEREKRAEIOR -

FEU R AET B - AREBER IS BHRFAERE
e e

AEBEREEREREEL TRESE  TRER
TS BT AR R R SRR - B
YB3 AT EEIERS - AR MR R
B R EERE AL ERER EEERETNR
ETLD -

RIREIR - B DI eI BRI (E 2 B ORSK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE_—ZF—NF=HA=1+—HILFZ

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BEUWERRHEMEKRIEE)
Notes: (continued) Bzt : (&)
(b) Loan receivables (b) EWER
An analysis of loan receivables by age, presented based on the REXNDIEB 25| 2 BKREFRRRSTIT
contractual due date, is as follows:
2016 2015
—RE —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Neither past due nor impaired KB EIsRE 181,271 94,628
Past due but not impaired BB RRE
— 1to 3 months —1Z318A4 - 2,000
— Over 3 months to 6 months —iBB3MEAZE6ER = 14,853
181,271 111,481
All loan receivables, which were past due but not impaired, have been B BB ARRE 2 B E SRR RS s B RSUE
fully settled subsequent to the reporting period. fi o
As at 31 March 2016, loan receivables bore interest at the fixed rates RZZ-R"F=ZA=+—0  EBREFREEFFIE
of 10% to 24% (2015: 12% to 24%) per annum and are repayable 1071247(7$ RF2BE24E) B REAR
within 12 months. Except for a loan receivable with a carrying amount 1218 A AEE - Br—IBAZ IR L R TR E AL
of approximately HK$27,390,000 (2015: HK$27,390,000) was secured 7%27,390,0007& 7T (= F — R4 : 27,390,000 7T) 2
by parcels of lands, all loan receivables were unsecured. The directors EWERIN - A BRERREER - EETH2E
assessed the collectability of loan receivables from time to time BRAZBEERCHERRFEERR - ERKER
individually with reference to borrowers’ past collection history and BB AR ELETT ERFFE
current creditworthiness.
(c)  Other receivables () H b B R E
Other receivables included an amount of RMB11,000,000 H fh 8 U 5K IE B 1E B A R 11,000,000 7T (4

(approximately HK$13,201,000), which has been settled after the end
of the reporting period, arising from assignment of rights as detailed
in note 36(a).

13,201,000/ 7C) 2 A - BEAFUAC NS HR1%
TyEE £ B MR 36(a) Tt il 2 R HEE -

EE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 4 %R 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMLENTS

AW PR W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—F— N NF=A=+—HIFFZE

22. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 22. BHEREKRSE
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
Equity investment listed in Hong Kong,  M&EB LH 2 IRAIRE
at fair value (Note) BAYE (B ) 12,640 38,245

Note: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the basis of
quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

The Group’s cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$1,180,000 (2015: HK$1,957,000) are deposited with
banks in the Mainland China. The remittance of these funds
out of the Mainland China is subject to exchange control
restrictions imposed by the Mainland China government.

23.

Wt EWERAZ A HETDREE PARAEHEET -

B &R BITHEER
ReRRITEKDEREENMBAS KRS
B AZ B A AP EHRITIFRR -

RNEE RS RIRTTAE#2491,180,0008 7T (=
T—FHF 11,957,000 70) F A H B R 2
$R1T o # xS RUEE P B A Z R A E A
T E e SMEE IR o
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BEFRRRHEMEMRIEA
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade payables FETER K 46 68
Other payables and accruals H b e FIE K BT B A 13,001 20,422
Amounts due to minority shareholders — FEfH I B A &) D #A% B 2 FUA
of subsidiary (Note) (Hiat) 30,000 30,000
Amount due to a director of ERWEBARES 2 A
subsidiary (Note) (HiaE) = 125
43,047 50,615
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is KESETEMmFHEEHRA1208 -
120 days.
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice REBAMEY| 2 ENRFRERI T

date is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-AE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0-30days 0ZE30H - 18
31-60 days 31E60H = -
Over 60 days 60 B A E 46 50
46 68

Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders and a director of subsidiary Kiet - ENHBRRDBBRRRERZFEREER 28

are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Ko fi [ s BN
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25. DEFERRED TAX 25. EFEIRIA
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE
Unused tax
losses
KRB ABERSE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MEmMA—H 12,694
Net change B H)F5E 8,056
Utilised EHA (836)
At 31 March 2015 and at 1 April 2015 RE—hAF=—A=+—HEZ-_Z—RAFWMA—H 19,914
Net change S8 FE 4,485
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary tH o — R P S A IR £ 88 (2,813)
Eliminated on deregistration of BB 2 B BUH FE 0 B S 5
subsidiaries (2,014)
Utilised E8A (47)
At 31 March 2016 RZTE—RE=ZA=+—H 19,525

No deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of the

tax losses due to the unpredi

Streams.

Deferred tax liabilities

ctability of future profit

3 4 R BOA TROR 2 AR S M SO T st AR TR g 18
ERELEHIAEE

EEBIRAE

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

IEBETE

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—OFMA—H 175

Net change P (56)
At 31 March 2015 and at R-_ZE—RF=ZA=+—H8K

1 April 2015 —E-hAFWMA—H 119

Net change B F 201

At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=HA=+—H 320

No deferred tax liability has been recognized due to the
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be
payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.

124

WEAGERA AT R RENRELTERZ
R EEmERRETrBAARE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —ZE—NF=A=1+—HIFFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable

25. REEIRIF (4)
EEBREE (&)
RETFECEMEIE A =FFN\F—A—

B hEEQ

BEANE: G- dsY

BURTEIR e bR S A U 0 2 5
ZHR - BEBEERTREAETERE
4030 4 5t R 22 0 B R 2

to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is ERENRE ISR LRERIERE o
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B&&E
Number of
shares Amount
RHOEE X}
‘000 HK$'000
F & FET
Authorised ETE
(ordinary share of HK$0.04 each) (BRMEE0.04 }%7_12 i )
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 2016  HZ—Z—p4FmA—H - —hHF
RZF2—XRE=A= —I— EI 5,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BEITREZ
(ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each) (BRMEEO0.04E L EBR)
At 1 April 2014, at 31 March 2015 and RZZE—MFMA—H
1 April 2015 —HAF=ZRA=+—HRK
—ET—-RFMA—H 3,950,333 158,013
Issued of new shares under share BB ECEBITHRG (Fita)
placing (note a) 790,000 31,600
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—RFZA=+—H 4,740,333 189,613
Note: BizE -

€] On 5 January 2016, 790,000,000 shares of the Company were issued
to placees at a total consideration of HK$102,700,000, of which
HK$31,600,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$68,361,000 was credited to share
premium account.

(@)

RZZE—XF—HAFRH 790,000,000 8 A A & i 17
A % ££ {8102,700,00078 7T % 17 T A B A - H
31,600,0008 7L E 5T AMRANER - M H0RR B S 12 2 6
JFE 68,361,000 8 LRI B T AR ER
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval of
the listing of and permission to deal in the shares to be
issued under the share option scheme on 17 November
2010, the Company adopted a share option scheme to
enable the Company to provide incentive to participants
with the opportunity of participating in the growth of the
Company by acquiring shares in the Company and may, in
turn, assist in the attraction and retention of talents who
have made contributions to the success of the Company.

The Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day
within 10 years commencing on the effective date of the
share option scheme to offer the grant of an option to any
eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out in the
share option scheme. An offer shall be deemed accepted
when the Company receives the letter containing the offer
of the grant of an option duly signed by the grantee together
with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 (or such other sum
in any currency as the Board may determine).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. On 7 August 2015, the ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the refreshment of the share option
scheme mandate limit under the share option scheme. As
at the date of this report, the Company had 395,033,280
share options available for issue under the share option
scheme, which represents approximately 10% of the issued
shares of the Company on 7 August 2015.

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STZTLI‘EMENT

27.

MR iERTE
BRER-_Z—ZF/\AOARTZARABR
FRIRS BB EBRER  UREBZAR
ZE-EF+— AT RREREERERTE
BTETZBROLETREBEZERT » ARA
RMBRAETE BEESARRI/URZEE
RESBEBUBARTAROMAZARFZ
BEAR - {TMEHREEIREBEBHAREZ
RINMELREBIZ AT -

ERgARNBREA SR B R 105 A
EREEXR 2 ERARRE - MEESREBRE
AEHSERFELRBBEHEZEMNAE
RALTRZRLBIRE - EARBREARA
EARZAHAREBREZN 2 KIHERT
MREZ FIR1 BT (REE G M fLEE 2 (EA
HibBEM o) BRAROBERR/ERN -

RIBEAAER 8 R R F IR B R ERFTT
B2 A MARTT BN TR AT Z
BHEE LR - & HTNFBRETEDBITRN
Z230% - M—F—RFN\ALA  KARERK
RBFARSBBET BREARIET B
AT BIRERE - RARE A
A A Al AR R R R T 818517 395,033,280 0 B
Bt HERARARZ_Z—RAEN\RtHEZ
BT A3 10% °
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27. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

Details of the share options granted by the Company are as

27. FRRRIERTE (W)
AABREHZ BEEFHBIT

follows:
Closing
share price
Number of immediately
share Exercise Fair value before the
Share options price per at grant date of
option  Date of grant Exercise period granted share date grant
IR R
®H R A & B A
BRE gHAH 1T BREZAR BRITEE ZRFE ZWmE
A 3 January 2014 3 January 2014 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.04315 0.290
2 January 2015
eE “E-NE—F=H —E-—MNFE—A=HZ 90,000,000 0.4000 0.04315 0.290
—hF¥—HA=H
B 3 January 2014 3 January 2015 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
2 January 2016
Z “-MNF—-A=H =% ﬂi A=HZ% 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
— ? /\fﬁ )E] El
The fair value of the share options granted of approximately BB RE 2 A ER4,724,000 8 T ERE
HK$4,724,000 was recognized as share option expense NIERRBRIERR X (ZZT—1F : 44,487,000
during the year (2015: approximately HK$4,487,000). HBIT) °

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into account the

FRARE AT NEEZBREAFERE
HEMR AT EEA G BFEE
BRI 2 R R MR M - HIRAEBBA

terms and conditions upon which the share options were BN

granted. The significant inputs into the Model were as

follows:

Share option A B
Bk F Z
Share Price (HK$) as at the date of grant R BB IR E (BIT) 0.290 0.290
Exercise Price (HK$) TEE (BT 0.400 0.400
Expected volatility TEHA R 1@ 65.859% 63.606%
Risk-free interest rate 42 3| g FI R 0.205% 0.333%
Life of option FE R i 47 A1 1 year £ 1 year %

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other feature
of the share options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

E‘EHH}&M&B&TS@&MB%‘EIHE&K@%Z{E%
CERBATN-ERERGER - IRHEKR
Téiﬁﬁ@%fguﬂ\ NFEZEES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ=F— A NF=HA=+—HILFZF

27. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 27. WRBRIERTE (@)
Details of the Company’s share options outstanding under FRARAREREZIE T WARITEERE
share option scheme during the year are as follows: BT
Number of Number of
share options Cancelled/ share options
Share outstanding at Granted Exercise  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
options Exercise the beginning during during during during at the end
scheme Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year theyear  of the year
ENERTE FRiE/ ERERTE
BRETE RLAH e zBREHA EREH ERE 313 FRXM  ZEBREYA
HKS
BT
2016
ZE-RE
Consuttants B 3 January 2014 0.4 90,000,000 - - - (90,000,000) -
B Z —F-m¥-A=A
Number of Number of
Share options Cancelled/ share options
Share outstanding at Granted Exercise terminated Lapsed outstanding
options Exercise  the beginning during auring auring during atthe end
scheme Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year the year of the year
FMHRRE ENEE/ ERHATTR
BREE  RHAH TRE  cBREHE ERNEH FRITE ks FRRR <BREHE
HKS
B
2015
—T-1F
Consultants A 3 January 2014 04 90,000,000 - - - (90,000,000) -
B & —T-m¥-A=A
Consultants B 3 January 2014 04 90,000,000 - - - - 90,000,000
B Z —Z-m¥-A=A
180,000,000 - - - (900000000 90,000,000
As at 31 March 2015, the Company had 90,000,000 share R-ZE—RF=ZF=1+—HB  ARARETZ
options outstanding under the scheme, which represented A 90,000,00017 18 AT 2 B AE - HE A
approximately 2.28% of the Company'’s ordinary shares in NRIRZ B B BT R4 2.28% °

issue as at that date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=F— N NF=H=1—HIEFZE

28. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 28.

For the year ended 31 March 2015

As the Company’s subsidiaries (“Target Group”), which are
engaged in stem cells technology business acquired on 18
September 2012, were unable to achieve the remaining
performance as required pursuant to the conditional sale
and purchase agreement dated 4 September 2012 and
supplemental deed dated 6 September 2012
("Agreements”), the Company has received confirmation
from the vendor of the Target Group dated 15 March 2015
to confirm that the Company is discharged from the
remaining payment obligations under contingent
consideration arrangement in connection with the
acquisition of Target Group. Details of the discharge of the
payment obligations are set out in the Company’s voluntary
announcement dated 1 April 2015. As a result, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$31,167,000 relating to the acquisition of
the Target Group was derecognised during the year ended
31 March 2015.

EARARE
BE-Z-AF=A=+—HLFE
HRARRZHBAR(BEEE] R-F
—ZFNATNAARKE - {EBRARRME
B EAEBREBEABA T ——FNLANA
ZERHEBEHHERERR-E-—_FAARX
BzmaRE( B MREZHRTEITER
B ARFCEKEEREEZEHHHANA
TE-RF=ATHHAZHERE  BRERF
RYERIEEE 2 AR ELHETH TR
BEECE®RE - BRABRRNREEZHBER
AARABHAZE-—HFHA-BZERA
fio o Bt - BB BREEZENRAREZER
H{EX)31,167,0008 TERBE_E—AF=
A=+—BH L FEBEER °
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 15 June 2015, the Group agreed to dispose of Tianxi
Hotel to the purchaser for a consideration of RMB5 million.
All the conditions of the disposal have been fulfilled and the
completion of the disposal took place on 19 June 2015.
Upon completion, the Group discontinued its hotel
operations. Details of the disposal were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 15 June 2015. An analysis
of the financial effects arising from the disposal is as follows:

29.

H & — R 2 7

MZFT—REXA+EA  FEEREARE
AR¥ 5,000,000 TRE ST HERBHERE o HE
SEMBGHEER  RELEEAR -2 -
FRATAATR « Tk AEBE L
EEE - REERZFBERARTAHAS
—REANATRAZAKNKE - HEFEE
EZ R ESTMT

HK$'000
Fi&TT
Net assets disposed of: Frib&s s BEFE
Property, plant and equipment Yz BB REE 11,291
Inventories 58 44
Trade and other receivables P S B R R L At R Wi Rk IR 1,988
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEEH 60
Trade and other payables FE T BRI EL At FE (T FRIR (2,988)
10,395
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of BT BB R BB ARRR 2 IE KR
subsidiary 40
Loss on disposal HEEREFE (4,095)
Total cash consideration RIS RE 6,340
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEFHEELACRSRAFRE
Cash consideration received BWEREESRE 6,340
Cash and cash equivalent disposed BEHEReMREEED (60)
6,280

The subsidiary disposed of during the year was engaged in
hotel business and had contributed turnover of
approximately HK$1,429,000 and loss of approximately
HK$5,669,000 to the Group up to the date of disposal.

REEFHEZHBARNMNREBEER  HE
HEBHILE - ARSEEEE¥541,429,000
7 TT K 518 4 5,669,000 7 7T
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30. COMMITMENT 30. KifE
(i) Operating lease commitment () KEHEERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAEMR - ARERET A LS
commitment payable under non-cancellable operating HEREEMREN 2 EBOT -
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 7,542 17,110
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEFRF (BEEEMT) 6,680 28,650
14,222 45,760
Note: For the year ended 31 March 2015, included in operating lease it BE-Z2—RE=A=+—HILFE A
commitments within one year of HK$9,090,000 and in the — F N9,090,000/ 7T &k £ —F F HF
second to fifth year of HK$25,755,000 are lease commitments 25,755,000 78 7T 2 48 & T & EJE A B A A T
related to lease of property by a Company's indirect wholly- EE2EMBRR(MBARDEE—BYE
owned subsidiary (“Subsidiary”) which has been disposed of FHzAEAE  AEMNBARBER®RE S
subsequent to the reporting period. Details of disposal of the BHE - HENBREZFIFENMTE29
Subsidiary are set out in note 29.
(ii) Capital commitments (i) BEAEE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Capital commitments for the WHEYIZ - 5 &
acquisition of property, BB BEAAESE
plant and equipment
— properties (Note a) — W (Kfzza) - 12,726
— construction in progress and — R TIEREM(HEED)
furnitures (Note b) - 1,088
- 13,814
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30.

31.

132

COMMITMENT (continued)

(ii) Capital commitments (continued)
Notes:

(a) On 27 May 2013, the Group entered into the acquisition
agreement with vendor (an independent third party) to acquire
properties located in the PRC at a consideration of
RMB33,600,000. A refundable deposit of RMB23,520,000 (2016:
approximately HK$28,679,000 and 2015: approximately
HK$29,694,000) was paid and balance of RMB10,080,000 (2016:
approximately HK$12,291,000 and 2015: approximately
HK$12,726,000) will be settled upon the fulfillment of certain
conditions as set out in the acquisition agreement. Subsequent
to the reporting period, the Group lodged a civil litigation
against the vendor for the refund of the deposit. Details of the
litigation are set out in note 36(a). In this regard, no capital
commitment was recognised as at 31 March 2016.

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2015, capital commitments for
the acquisition of construction in progress and furnitures are
related to Tianxi Hotel which has been disposed of subsequent
to the reporting period. Details of disposal of Tianxi Hotel are
set out in note 29.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
and its employees are each required to make monthly
contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,500
(2015: HK$1,500), whichever is the lower, to the scheme.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss amounted to HK$324,000 (2015: HK$672,000).

As at 31 March 2016, there were no forfeited contributions

available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2015: Nil).

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

30.

31.

EEanEEE SFUES

i ()
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@ RZB-—=FRA-++tH xEEREH
(BB E=7)F L BERH  UREBAR
#£33,600,000 T HE R E Y - AIREIZT &
A R #23520000c( = & — XN F: 4
28,679,000 7T e —Z — A« 429,694,000
BB XA - ez AR 10,080,0007T(=
T—NF : 4912,291,0008 TR T —HF :
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments, bank
balances, trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management

32. MBEIR
AEBYETEHHTACETHEERE 15
EEERE  $ITE%  BRERREMER
REURENRR R ERRIE - RS0
TAZHBEREWITRE AZSHEIAS
B8 2 B T 4] B 3% 55 R B o Bk s 80 51 4
T EBEEEREEZSARUBRRNES
R SRR o

manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

ST

(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ BHETEEH
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Financial assets MKEE
Avalilable-for-sale investments A EEERE 2,509 2,509
Loan and receivables ER K EBGRIE
— Trade and other receivables — FEURBR 3R I B Atb U SR IE 242,744 137,975
— Cash and bank balances — RERIBITHEH 40,301 12,099
Held-for-trading investments BIFEERE 12,640 38,245
298,194 190,828
Financial liabilities g 5=
Amortised costs A AR
— Trade and other payables — BRI E A ERRIE 37,410 40,241
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)
0]

134

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the Group’s functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group's business activities are primarily exposed
to foreign exchange risk in respect of Renminbi
("RMB") against Hong Kong Dollar. The net
assets/liabilities of certain investments of the
Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

—NF=A=T—HIFE

32. MBEIRmM@)
g A

(M

SRR

SNE BRI AR KB ER 5 R EHER
BENBEAREENREERE A
BETHERES - AEEFEAI
BAHEZEBAZINERR - A%
ExBIEmHREARETAR
BDABTERZINERR - A%
ERhEBARECEE " BETF
BAASINERERR - ERER
BERIIERR  LHENEHER

ZEEPINER o

RB|EMR - REBAINEFHEZ
EABREERERABEREEN
-

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2016 2015 2016 2015
—RE —ZT—FHF ZEB-XRF —hFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FETT
Renminbi AR 38,933 23,322 2,394 4,206
HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o FHif4f Rl lTEB AR AR
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(M

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
loss for the year where the functional currencies
of the Group strengthen 5% against Renminbi.
For a 5% weakening of the functional currencies
of the Group against the Renminbi, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss,
and the balances below would be negative.

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

ST

32. MBEIR @)

™ 5 B B ()

M

SN RLBR (AF)

SN R R B IR 7T
AEBETZEHARBKRETRZ
FE - TRAVAKELHARRL
BEEHEIE R A RBTHE R A2 E5%
ZHEE 5% RAETREERAR
PR AR 5 N L B s T R BRURR L
K RBREEEHERAEHRZ
BREHMETE - MBRESNE
BHARBMZINEHEEHEIRE -
W AR SN BE 5 2 5% B B F 4 B
ABEERE o AT EBBERMEA
SEZEEE L ARETHESS
AR E RN - fHAEE
DEEEBHARKERZESS  BIY
BEEREREMMBRZZE  ATHE

Effect on loss for
the year end and

accumulated losses

Effect on equity

HELZBAFER
EitEEzEE HRAZEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
=F-AF —THF ZT-AF T AOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHETT FHT FET
Renminbi AR 1,827 1,006 1,827 1,006
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Market risk (continued)

136

(b)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED e

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group's exposure of bank
balances to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of variable-rate bank balances at the
end of the reporting period was the amount
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variable were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2016 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$7,000 (2015: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$52,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
balance.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as held-for-trading investments. The
Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
management monitors the price risk and will
take appropriate actions when necessary.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2016, if the quoted market price of
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as held-for-trading investments had been
increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$632,000 as a result of change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments
(2015: HK$1,912,000).

—NF=A=T—HIFE

32. MBEIRmM@)
SRR (&)

(b)

EEanEEE SFUES

(ii)

(iii)

RSN
ZJSEEEEE\JMEZL'JYH@I%E@E

AR - BEERAR/ANEEL
fﬁﬁéiﬁﬁﬁxzfﬁéﬁ/miﬂiﬂ&
il REREBESRENERRN
BH -

T 8 i SRR 24T

LAT@S{F&F DT TIIRIBI 3R IR
A ZREREN XA MRS
ZAMBRVBERR 2 BIRTT
EHRRAEFAREESEMRE -

fif & 7 & £ R B 50 18 Z 2 ifn
FrEHME BRI KEEE
E-F-XFZA=+—AHLFE
2 BB A1 IN497,0007%8 7T

(ZZE—HF: ®mL /Ny
52,0008 70) TEHRAEEA

TFBIRITESBAEAT
,—L |§AA

BRemEFE

ERERE
AEBEREDEARKEEEREZ
BAREHASZRAEBRRR - A&
BERRREIESETREELTR
AE7 EEEBERERRR X
BRAEFBEFRIEZ T °

BRANE IR B Z 7547
A TN BEBE DT TR IR IR & B R P
AZRAEBREBMER - R =T
—RNE=ZA=1+—8 xS
EREDENES L HRAELAN
R ER AR 5% M A H Al
BT KEBFEREE
BIEBRABEEEREATEES
i 35 4>/ 1 11632,00008 7T ( — &
—FH4F :1,912,00087CT)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group's exposure to credit risk on trade and other
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than industry
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had concentration of credit risk as over 89%
(2015: over 96%) of the total trade receivables was
due from 5 (2015: 5) largest customer which had no
history of default. The Group has policies in place for
the control and monitoring of such credit risk.

The Group also exposes to credit risk on loan
receivables. The Group has internal control
procedures for the identification of the credit
worthiness of borrowers, evaluation of the loan
approval and request for collateral against loan
receivables, if necessary. In addition management
reviews the recoverable amount of loan receivables
individually at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of borrowers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC with high credit
rating.

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

32. MBEIR @)

()

FERE
Q%%T?*ﬁ%)@ﬁi{iﬁﬁ AEER
XUBBELAZEREERRIKEES

EM‘%HNRE’%%%&U HHECRRAUBEE
ZAREE -

REREFRREMERRIBNS - A%
EFEHEERREESTER M
e (MESEEEBEMETE) MY
2 AUREERBRASEERZBERAEE
RAEERERNEF L REAMERE
o RBEIRR  AEBAZEEER
B RERARKER(ZZ—A%E R
%) WG KBRS E B R 2 BUEL
FEWBR A FERIBIO% (T —H4F : 1B
BO6%) o AEBE M E EREBREITH
& o

AEBNTAAZBEERZEERR -
REBERANIEZIER ;%%EHETA
ZEEMRR FHERERRERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=F— NF=A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations.

The tables below analysis the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of each reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

32. MBIRmE)

(d)

RBE SRR

ERRBEcRRE  AEBERNS
ReRRSSEMERREEBERRT
RKF URAEEZERTEDS LR
BREREKBDZHE EEETHR
BEFrZ2ESMN - BRABRAVE
BRENEMBEE -

TRETAEERHZHRERRESLD
B A 2 R BRI R AR RE 2 HIAE R B
DZMBRESIW - ERARBEZSHE
RANABRAZRE - TREENE
RAGRERE

The Group AEH
On demand or Total Total carrying
less than undiscounted amount at
3 months cash flow 31.3.2016
R-ZEB—RE
BERD FMBREEL =ZA=+-—H
PR=@A REHAT ZREBE
2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XRE FHExT FET FET
Trade and other payables FEATBR SN EL A FE A
A 37,410 37,410 37,410
On demand or Total  Total carrying
less than  undiscounted amount at
3 months cash flow 31.3.2015
R-E—RHE
BERY KREEIRIBE =ZA=1+—H
DR=1EH mE MR 2 ARE A
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—RHF BT FHT FHET
Trade and other payables FEA BR SR N B FE A
RIE 40,241 40,241 40,241
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively; and

o The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the financial statements approximate their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

(e)

L ¥

MENTS

32. MBEIR @)

BB ITAZAFE
MBREERVBEEZATFERTIE

R -

s  AREGRRGHALEERMISEE
BEZWBEENRMBEBZATE
DD RI2ERBTISEABERE
BEET: Rk

s HMUBKEERVBEEBEZRF
B DEAREBEAANEEMF
ERMSERSER  ETHRRARE
REDNEE -

EERR RUBBRRBRAZUBEE
LB REEEENFEERS

TRERNTRATFERRBRTEZH
BIASH  mBRAFEEEMFREE
DR—EZH:

F-RAVEFENEHREERAE
RIERT ISP CRFAR) BRSH

F_RRAVEAENREE-RAERE
WELASN - ATEE (BIER) k% (BB
EBRITE) BEERBEREMGRARK
BEH R
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. MBIRmE)

(e) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) (e) BB TEHZAFREE)
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived FE=ZWAFEFEREFALIERIE
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the ABRMBHE 2 EEREERAE(E
asset or liability that are not based on observable EER B AE) ZHERMEE -
market data (unobservable inputs).

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RHF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

F—& FIR F=ZR F— E-R E=R

Equity securities listed ~ R&EBLHZ

in Hong Kong PR AT

at fair value BRTE
Held-for-trading BEBERE

investments 12,640 - - 38,245 - -
The fair value of held-for-trading investments was FIEBEBEREZ AFETERTISM
based on quoted bid prices in an active market. wEAEAKE -
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in RMEFE  F—RERE_HZHETE
both years. 1% o
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33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and process during the years end
31 March 2016 and 2015.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets. The
Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2016 was
12% (2015: 17%).

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

33.

: ‘«“ié «
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—ZF

REER

AEEEREAZ BRAREAEEEELRS
BEEQE S  URBRREREHN A
o F 25 R A RN s A R R RS SR B 4 [
i o

AEERBEERRAAEEE 2 RRFHE
BRAEEARE - BEFRBARELARE
AEETRERHEINTFRRZBESHE - Ak
REMER - B#THRNIHEEEARDE
BoBE_E-RFRZZE-AF=A=+—
BILEFE  WERHERBR BEREFFL

s

= °

REBAZEMIMNFRINZ EARZRATARR

AEEREEABRR(RBRABERABEE
B)REERER - REBZEBARBEE
BERERBEZKFE RZE—XRE=A
—t+—HZEEABHLEAR12%(ZT—AHF
17%) °
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had transactions with the
following related parties during the year:

(@) Balances and transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of

34. ARABALIRS

BAGRE M BMREMAOAWEEIN - AL
ERAFEGRATAERALETRS

(@ ARFEEMBRR(ERARTZAH
AL HZ BRI HERES KRB R
H3H - MG RAMERE -

(b) FEEBAEZHE
FRN EERHEMFTEEEABZHME

key management during the year were as follows: NN
2016 2015
—RE —ZT—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Short-term benefits SRR 4,133 3,979
Post-employment benefits BRI B R 28 18
4,161 3,997

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EENHEMTEERABZME I EE
MEBeEEENABZRBERTHS
BEET -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 4. ARABALTES @)

(c) On 18 March 2016, Gold Arch Group Limited (“Gold
Arch”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a two-year term Technology
Development Agreement (“TDA") with a connected
person, Hope Bio-Tech (Suzhou) Company Limited
("Hope Bio-Tech”), a company controlled by the
executive director of the Company, Mr. David Lin Kao
Kun and his spouse, for improving and
commercializing the two Patents held by Gold Arch.
The total consideration of the TDA for the first year of
service is HK$9,500,000 while the consideration of the
second year is subject to negotiation between both
parties. During the year, the Group paid HK$3,000,000
to Hope Bio-Tech. Details of the transaction are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March
2016.

The related party transaction in respect of (a) above does
not constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (b) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. However those transactions are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (c) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules are provided in the
Directors’ Report.

(c)

RZE—AR"F=A+/N\B x&EBEZEH
BE2ENBRARSMEEERAR(S
P90) BEE A TERAEYRE (BN E
RAR([EEEMEHE]  AERQRBIT
EEMmELERERBIES 2 AR E]
N AMEZ BB REEREER(1E
BRMEEREAR] - LEMESLS
PIE 2 EFETRA KM - 1BE
RfZERHBEARNEBFREZENRES
9,500,000 7T« MEZF 2 REBFH
HEFERET - F1 - AEEERE
1 A )RR A 3,000,00058 7T © X 5 EE
BHRARRBBHA-_ZT— X E=A
RWAN=PA/N R

R EXE (@) A2 BB AT S THEREAIE
WMETRUNE0EMAT L HEEZS -

T £SO (0) B2 7 BB A 52 5 AR B R
ETRBIBE0EFMAE L MERS « AT - &
SR HEHEETEIER LRI 208 25
BAE -

W EXEE (R E BB AT ZEKAIER
ETRANF0EMAEZMERS - BIFER L
MRAB0EMRE L RBEEEHNEETSHR

==
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—F— N NF=A=+—HIFFZE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  35. EEMEATFE

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (@ RZE—R"F=ZA=1+—80 xRQAZ
Company as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: FEWBAAFBLOT ¢
Place of Issue and paid up Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Form of capital/registered  value of issued capital held
Name of Company operation legal entity capital by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BEARBRRE/ RAAFBERARE
ARER EEHY EEBEFR Bl AERDH TEER
Directly Indirectly
BE ik
RoyalKit Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
HEESERLA 7 company L3I 10,000%7T RERR
BREAAH
RATRAENE S The People’s Limited liability HK$150,000,000 - 100%  Trading business
BRAT RepublicofChina ~ company 150,000,000 7 EUES
PEAREHE BREFLA
Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group i company EER VBT RERR
Limited BREEAA
EnNERITER
BRARE
LST Operating Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Distribution of
BB company LER1EL biomedical and life
BREELR sciences products
DEENES R
ERREER
Gold Arch Group Limited ~~ British Virgin Islands  Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Researchand
BMEEERAR LBRAHE company LERIET development of
BREMLAT anti-aging and
stem cells related
products
HERRER
BARERER
159 Regenerative British Virgin Islands  Limited liability Ordinary US$100 51% - Investment holding
Medicine Group HK) —~ EBEZHE company LBRI0ET RERR
Limited BREFLH
BEEEEE
(B#)BRLA
159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Storage and
Cell LifeBank (HX) i company EER VBT processing of stem
BB I9AEENS BREMAT cells
BREERAT BAREFRNT
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—ZF

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

35. ¥EMBOTIEN W)

(continued)
(@ (continued) @ (&)
Place of Issue and paid up Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Form of capital/registered  value of issued capital held
Name of Company operation legal entity capital by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BEARBERE/ FAAMEERITRE
NEEH BEMY EEERFR Bl AEAAL TEER
Directly Indirectly
Ef ik
159 Anti-Aging Centre Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Anti-aging and stem
(HK) Limited BE company TEREL cell technology
BB 1ONEERD BREAAT related services
BRAT hEEReRRHN
piElaeyS
Asia Honest Finance Hong Kong Limited fiability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Money lending
Limited B company ZER1EL business
FFHBERAA BREAAH HEXH
Life Length International ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Health Club Limited i company LRR1ET RERR
EF[‘%F BREAAH
BEHBRA
ERRERE () The People’s Limited liability RMBS50,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BRARF Republicof China ~ company AR 50,000,000 7T REER
hEARAAME BREEAHA
RENE LR The People’s Limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Ant-aging and beauty
BRAT Republicof China ~ company AR3,000,000 7 service
AR AAE BRELAT NEEREDRHE
AIMEGREEREE  The People’s Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100%  Ant-aging and beauty
BB LA Republicof China company AR 500,000 7T senvice
hEAREHE BREAAT nEEREDRH

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

EMEARMEEARAFET

MR

AEERERAKREFEZEHES
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=F— NF=A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  35. XEME LTS #)

(continued)
(b)  The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned by TERIIEBERFEREZZAEER
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- FEEWB AT ZFFE -
controlling interests:
Proportion of ownership
interest held by non- Loss allocated to Accumulated non-
controlling interest  non-controlling interest  controlling interests
FERER TEZE
FrislaRELA FERERER RatFERER
Place of Principal
incorporation/ place of
Name of Company operation business 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ML/
NRER EXimE FTEEERYE —B-RE “T-1F ZB-RE -“T-1fF ZE-RE -“T-IF
159 Regenerative Medicine  British Virgin -~ HongKong
Group (H.K.) Limited Islands 49% 49% (1,454) (2953 (14,136) (12,682)
INELBREEE (FE) ZERREE  FA
BRAT]
159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Hong Kong
(HK) Limited 49% 49% (773) (447) © (14,983) (14.210)
AR IINFERD A &
BRAT]
159 Autologous Stem Cell Hong Kong Hong Kong
LifeBank (H.K.) Limited 49% 49% (2,014) (2,169 (7,977) (5,963)
AR IVABENRARE AR &
BRAT]
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interest (5,149) (4,121)
BAFERER 2 ERFEENBLE
(42,245) (36,976)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-F—NF=A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35.
(continued)
Summarized financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

FEMEOTENS W)

BAEERFERED cARESHERRZH
BERBRIINT - ATHHEERBEREER

interest is set out below. The summarized financial YN FT Y 20E -
information below represents amounts before intra-group
eliminations.
2016 —E-AF
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
£#8159 BEB159ERE
159BEBEERE RREPG M4 E
(BB)ERAT BRAT BRAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER FTHER
Current assets REAE 2,825 8,826 590
Non-current assets FERBEE = 2,139 2,373
Current liabilities RN (31,675) (87,440) (19,244)
Non-current liabilities ErEN=VET - - -
Equity attributable to owners RABEAR AELER
of the Company (14,714) (39,002) (8,304)
Non-controlling interests IR (14,136) (37,473) (7,977)
Non-controlling interests IR S
(after intra-group eliminations) (EERNEHE) - (14,983) -
Revenue Wiz - 5,287 -
Expenses fsZ (2,967) (52,763) (4,110)
Loss for the year REEEE (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
Loss attributable to owners AABHEAANELEE
of the Company (1,513) (24,213) (2,096)
Loss attributable to the non- ey R S e (L S 1B
controlling interests (1,454) (23,263) (2,014)
Loss for the year rEEEE (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
Other comprehensive income RARIEE NER
attributable to owners Hiv2mla
of the Company - - =
Other comprehensive income IR RS
attributable to the Hin 2
non-controlling interests - = =
Other comprehensive income REFHEMEERE
for the year = = =
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

148

(continued)
2016 (continued)

= —%—ﬁ#‘fﬁf+—51tﬁ—c i &

®+=—=

Total comprehensive expense RRRHEAR NEN
attributable to owners TEMAZEHE
of the Company

Total comprehensive expense FEPERR R R RS
attributable to the PHEAXEHE
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense AFEERERAYBE
for the year

Dividends paid to [ERIERE S Faid =)
non-controlling interests

Net cash outflow from RELEEB RS RE
operating activities R

Net cash outflow from REEEEH RS RAH
investing activities R

Net cash inflow (outflow) REME RS ZHERA
from financing activities (i) F4

Net cash inflow (outflow) HemAGRL) F58

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o F&4mAl BT EE AR A )

35. EEMBLOFFES @)

—E-RE#H)
159

Regenerative 159
Medicine Anti-Aging
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.)
Limited Limited
8159
159BEEEEE nEZHRL
(BR)ERAH BERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FTHERT

159
Autologous
Stem Cell
LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited
EB15988E
% 4B B
BERDA
HK$'000
TER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE_—ZF—NF=HA=1+—HILFZ

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  35. X EME LT FE )

(continued)
2015 -0
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K) Center (HK.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
HHE159 BAB159 BEEE
159 B4R 5%@ mEZHL &M E
(BE)BERA BRATE BRAF]
HK$'OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FET
Current assets mEEE 99 52,581 590
Non-current assets FRBEE - 3,887 4,119
Current liabilities mEaRE (25,981) (85,468) (16,878)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - -
Equity attributable to owners RAEHEAR AEERER
of the Company (13,199) (14,790) (6,207)
Non-controlling interests IR S (12,682) (14,210) (5,963)
Revenue Wz 590 13,740 -
Expenses 53 (6,617) (14,654) (4,427)
Loss for the year REEERE (6,027) 914) (4,427)
Loss attributable to owners RREHERAEEER
of the Company (3,074) (466) (2,258)
Loss attributable to the kRS EE
non-controlling interests (2,953) (448) (2,169)
Loss for the year REEEE (6,027) (914) (4,427)
Other comprehensive income RAEHEAR AEL
attributable to owners of the Hin2HE e
Ccompany - - -
Other comprehensive income FEERIER RS
attributable to the Hin2HE e

non-controlling interests - - _

Other comprehensive income REFHMEEEKE
for the year - - -
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

—NE=A=T—HIFE

35. EEMBOTIENS W)

(continued)
2015 (continued) —E-AFE(HF)
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (HK.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
FE159 BB 19ERE
159 A5 fﬁ%l MEEFRD M4 E
(BB)ERA BRAT BRAR
HK$’OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THET
Total comprehensive expense KRBEARNEN
attributable to owners THEMAZEHE
of the Company (3,074) (466) (2,258)
Total comprehensive expense FE P A s FE A
attributable to the THEMAZEHE
non-controlling interests (2,953) (448) (2,169)
Total comprehensive expense AEERXEMLBE
for the year (6,027) (914) (4,427)
Dividends paid to T IEERER 2 RE
non-controlling interests - - -
Net cash outflow from RELLEEB RS
operating activities M FEE (5,267) (6,753) (2,703)
Net cash outflow from REREBEH RE
investing activities M FEE - @ (%)
Net cash (outflow) inflow KEREEB 2B ()
from financing activities MARE (5,267) 5,480 2,707
Net cash outflow RenAFHE - (1,280) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIODS
For the year ended 31 March 2016

@)

On 7 April 2016, Shenzhen Kang Da Bio Technology
Trading Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Subsidiary”), lodged a
civil litigation against Shenzhen Shunxing Logistics
Company Limited, the property holder (“Vendor”) and
Mr. Ji Hong and Shenzhen Manchen Real Estate
Development Company Limited, the guarantors and
applied for an order from the People’s Court of
Longgang District, Shenzhen Municipality of the
People’s Republic of China (the “People’s Court of
Longgang”) for termination of the acquisition
agreement and the supplemental agreement to the
acquisition agreement, return of the refundable
deposit in the sum of RMB23,520,000 and payment of
damages in the sum of RMBS8,490,720 (being the
damages for the period from 1 February 2014 to 15
March 2016) (“Rights”) due to the Vendor's failure to
deliver the properties within the time as specified in
the acquisition agreement. On 22 June 2016, the
Subsidiary entered into an assignment agreement with
an independent third party (“Assignee”) to assign the
Rights to the Assignee at a consideration of
RMB11,000,000 (“Consideration”). The Subsidiary
received the Consideration after the end of the
reporting period. As a result, impairment loss of
deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment in the amount of RMB12,520,000
(approximately HK$15,026,000) was recognised in the
profit and loss and the balance of deposit in the
amount of RMB11,000,000 (approximately
HK$13,201,000) was recognised as other receivable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Details of the litigation and the assignment of the
Rights are set out in the Company’s voluntary
announcements dated 4 May 2016 and 22 June 2016
respectively.

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

%.ﬁi&&iﬁ

BE=
@)

—R"FEZA=Z+—HLEFE
EBm%%%vrﬁ}\/xﬂuﬁiﬁﬁi%/mﬁ@@

A (TE77 ) REER KRB = EEH%KEW
*H%% ARmzEEzENBA
RITEREMESERA (FEZMTJ%

AR R=ZZE—"FNAELHRAEH
RRBAFREERFIT MG EEE
BERAAIRHREFA - WAFAEA
REMBERIITEEMEARER (8
ARER D) BB R IE B ER
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36. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIODS

(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 (continued)
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(o)

On 26 April 2016, the Company entered into the non-
legally binding letter of intent with Driving Force
Limited (the “Driving Force"), in respect of a possible
acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition”). Subject to the
formal sale and purchase agreement which may be
entered into in relation to the Possible Acquisition,
Driving Force shall sell and the Company shall acquire
the sale share, representing 100% of the issued share
capital of Clear Ambition Global Limited (the “Target
Company”). The Target Company is a company
incorporated in Samoa and principally engaged in the
business of investment holding. It holds 90% of the
issued share capital of Cellvax SAS, a company
incorporated in France on 19 June 2001. Cellvax SAS is
a service company which provides complete
preclinical inovating services allowing accelerating the
drug development process for unmet needs related to
severe human diseases, mainly in oncology and
osteoarthritis fields. The consideration for the Possible
Acquisition is subject to further negotiations and
determination between Driving Force and the
Company. As at the date of this report, the
discussions were still in progress and no legally-
binding agreement had been entered into in respect
of the Possible Acquisition. Details of the Possible
Acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 April 2016.

Reference was made to the Company’s circular dated
18 May 2016 (the “Circular”), the Company proposed (i)
the refreshment of general mandate to allot and issue
shares. At the date of the Circular, the total number of
shares in issue was 4,740,332,805 shares. The
refreshment of general mandate would allow the
directors to allot and issue a maximum of 948,066,561
new Shares, representing 20% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 3 June 2016 (the "EGM"); and (i) the
proposed increase in the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$200,000,000 (divided into
5,000,000,000 shares) to HK$400,000,000 (divided into
10,000,000,000 shares) by creation of an additional
5,000,000,000 shares. The relevant resolutions in
relation to the refreshment of general mandate to allot
and issue shares and increase in authorised share
capital were duly passed by the shareholders by way
of poll at the EGM. Details of the proposed
refreshment of general mandate to allot and issue
shares and increase in authorised share capital were
disclosed in the Circular and the Company’s
announcement dated 3 June 2016.
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37. ARELFMBIKARZEH

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBx FHETT
Non-Current Assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE LB 5 19
Investment in subsidiaries RWBRRZIEE 49,339 49,339
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 49,344 49,358
Current Assets REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries TEUL M B A RGN IE 220,881 193,175
Trade and other receivables Ui BR SR N At R W kIR 144 15,575
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE 12,640 38,245
Tax in advance AR 959 -
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTER 38,209 681
Total current assets MBNEELE 272,833 247,676
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FET B A FI3 I8 720 730
Trade and other payables JE A BR SR N E At JE < SR IE 811 2,821
Tax payable FET R IR = 1,353
Total current liabilities BB BB 1,531 4,904
Net current assets MENEEFE 271,302 242,772
Net assets BEFE 320,646 292,130
Capital and reserves R 18
Share capital A& A 189,613 158,013
Reserves i 131,033 134,117
Total equity TEZSA%E 320,646 292,130
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors REESN - E—XEXA -+ AR ERE
on 24 June 2016. BETIEE o

LU Zhigiang CHUI Kwong Kau
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HiTEE
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FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
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37. ARFELTMBKARZIEH (@)

Movements of the Company’s reserves: (@ ZFLAREZED:
Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE BRERME RitER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT TAT
At 1 April 2014 R-E-—MEWNA—AH 524,799 97 (331,128) 194,642
Loss for the year rEEERE - - (65,012) (65012) |
Total comprehensive expense AFEXARAYEE
for the year - - (65,012) (65,012)
Recognition of equity-settied R AER F A EE R
share-based payment R BERE AR - 4,487 - 4,487
Share options lapsed BIRELN - (3,883) 3,883 -
At 31 March 2015 R-E-h&E=A=+—H 524,799 1,575 (392,257) 134,117
At 31 March 2015 and RZZ-RF=A=1+—-Ak
at 1 April 2015 “E-hFNA-H 524,799 1,575 (392,257) 134,117
Loss for the year AEEEE = = (76,168) (76,168) |
Total comprehensive expense AEEXERYBE
for the year - - (76,168) (76,168)
Issue of ordinary shares under BERHEEETEBR
share placing 68,361 - - 68,361
Recognition of equity-settied R AER A EE R
share-based payment R BERE 2 AT = 4,723 = 4,723
Share options lapsed BRIRELY - (6,298) 6,298 -
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=ZA=1—H 593,160 - (462,127) 131,033

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 mRIER T E AR A 7



For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — =

37.

g

—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(b)

(c)

(M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company's shares in 2002.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair
value of the number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
5)().

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 5(g).

Distributability of reserves

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2016 amount to
approximately HK$131,033,000 (2015:
HK$132,542,000).

—NF=ZA=1+—HULFE

(b)

()

37. ARELFIMBIKARZEH @)

REMERAR

(M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MRAD =18

BRERSHSAREMERT) K
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BENEEN A BEEEES I M
&% HAER D IR S

BRI

AEEB 2 B bl e A A R 1
R F T HAEBEEEEN
WEBHTE A R AREEE AR R
SR ERITIRODEREMRER 2
ER -
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FBRERBEAR R M ARTT
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7%% 2 N SRR AN 2 & SRR e

uu“
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The summarized consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

i
ANCIAL SUMMARY

NE=A=F—HILFE

audited consolidated financial statements of the Group, were set

AN
#RA

AEBBELRMBFEEZGARE BEEMAE

(B AKREREZGAMBRR)BINAOT

out below:
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E-CF —E-=F —T-MF i —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR TAT FAT FTHER
(Restated)
(E3)
Turnover ] 33,464 39,153 679,891 320,079 123,372
Loss before tax KR ATE 12 (24,766) (41,801) (132,825) (77,175) (41,111)
Income tax P57 ®) (1) (12) (1,709) (656)
Loss for the year from RERBELEEB
continuing operations FEEE (24,774) (41,812) (132,837) (78,884) (41,767)
Loss for the year from REBRIEEKZ
discontinued operations  FEEE (7,251) (1,314) (52,121) 9,677) (5,669)
Loss for the year REEERE (32,025) (43,126) (184,958) (88,561) (47,436)
Attributable to: FE1L -
Owners of the Company  AAFIEAA (28,448) (35,614) (152,201) (81,134) (42,167)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3EiZpR#Es (3,577) (7,512) (32,757) (7,427) (5,269)
At as 31 March
R=A=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ZT-ZF ZE-=F ZZ-WmFE ZZ-hF ZEB-XF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHEx
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BERE 433,215 691,219 441,760 316,665 361,642
Total liabilities BEEE (106,317) (227,221) (94,904) (52,348) (43,047)
Net assets EEFE 326,898 463,998 346,856 264,317 318,595
Non-controlling interests ~ 3efefdfEzs 57,434 35,279 (29,549) (36,976) (42,245)
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